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          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: With the

          3  conclusion of our film, we begin our hearing this

          4  morning.

          5                 Welcome to everyone, we are delighted

          6  to have you and I know some of the contents or the

          7  speakers that are going to be with us today so that

          8  I know it will be an exciting and challenging

          9  hearing.

         10                 The profession of teaching is our

         11  discussion, today it is in a state of flux. Schools

         12  of education are being pressured to intensify

         13  specific subject areas, such as math, English

         14  language skills, science, et cetera. The New York

         15  State Board of Regents is also making their,

         16  intensifying the teacher certification process. The

         17  exams are becoming more difficult, and higher

         18  passing grades are required. The present teacher

         19  shortage seems only to intensify as the student

         20  population grows. The recruitment and supply of

         21  teachers falls short of the supply needed, thus

         22  creating a wide gap in our educational system. The

         23  City University provides approximately 25 percent of

         24  the new teaching staff in New York City schools. We

         25  will discuss today and explore the status of our
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          2  schools of education throughout the CUNY system.

          3                 We will explore the effectiveness of

          4  teacher training in light of today's emphasis on

          5  higher standards. Are we meeting that challenge?

          6                 Will pressure for higher standards

          7  affect teacher recruitment? Can we make teaching a

          8  more attractive career choice to scholars of other

          9  disciplines? Advanced degrees are a built-in

         10  requirement for professional advancement of

         11  teachers. Are our masters and doctoral programs

         12  meeting the need?

         13                 Teacher training is not just a series

         14  of test preparation. Are we enriching the teaching

         15  experience for our future educators, helping them to

         16  enjoy the art? To view their students individually,

         17  increasing their capacity to learn from their

         18  students. Are we properly preparing them to force

         19  intellectual development in their students? Are we

         20  providing enough early hands-on experience for our

         21  ed majors, actually working with and observing

         22  children in the learning process.

         23                 Through the many collaborative

         24  programs CUNY has with our secondary schools, are

         25  there programs that outreach and attract potential
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          2  teachers? We have raised many questions today, and I

          3  am confident that the answers will be woven

          4  throughout your testimony. We welcome this

          5  opportunity for this most important debate. If there

          6  is a comprehensive and meaningful fast track to

          7  improving the education of our children, it lies in

          8  the depth and magnitude and excellence of the

          9  education of our future teachers.

         10                 We look forward to your testimony

         11  today and our first speaker will be the start of our

         12  video, Mr. Russell Hotzler, Dean of Academic Affairs

         13  of the City University. Welcome.

         14                 We have been joined also by my

         15  colleague, Annette Robinson, from Brooklyn, a member

         16  of our Committee.

         17                 Good morning.

         18                 DR. HOTZLER: Perhaps the video was

         19  enough?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: You were so

         21  good that we want more.

         22                 DR. HOTZLER: Well, we are going to

         23  try to give you more, but it is not easy, as you

         24  know.

         25                 Thank you for this opportunity to
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          2  provide you with an update of the University's

          3  activities as they relate to teacher education and

          4  to indicate how the University is responding to the

          5  recently adopted new Board of Regents requirements

          6  for teacher education programs.

          7                 My colleagues from Brooklyn College,

          8  Hunter College, Medgar Evers College, Queens College

          9  and York College will also provide the committee

         10  with information regarding specific activities

         11  underway on their campuses.

         12                 The high priority that these

         13  activities have been given serves to emphasize the

         14  important relationship between the City's public

         15  university and the City's public schools.

         16                 As the Committee is aware, the Board

         17  of Regents has adopted a broad set of educational

         18  reforms that establish higher performance standards

         19  for elementary and secondary students, more

         20  comprehensive high school graduation requirements,

         21  as well as higher standards for teachers, for

         22  teacher education programs, and for the colleges

         23  that offer teacher education.

         24                 As indicated in my remarks to the

         25  Committee last year, the University has moved
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          2  aggressively to implement strategies and activities

          3  that will raise the effectiveness of our teacher

          4  education programs and ensure that all new state

          5  requirements for teacher education programs are

          6  attained.

          7                 Under graduate and graduate programs

          8  leading to teacher certification are currently

          9  offered by nine of the University's senior colleges.

         10  And fall 1998 program enrollments totalled

         11  approximately 13,250 students. This includes 4,800

         12  upper division undergraduates, that's juniors and

         13  seniors and 8,400 master's level graduate students.

         14                 At their September 17th, 1999

         15  meeting, the Regents formally adopted new standards

         16  for all programs that prepare classroom teachers.

         17                 The new standards are encompassed in

         18  Subdivision 52 of the regulations of the

         19  Commissioner of Education and serve to promote

         20  several important objectives including:

         21                 - the enhanced preparation of

         22  teachers in the liberal arts and sciences, and in

         23  the subject matter that they will be teaching.

         24                 - the infusion of State Learning

         25  Standards for students into all teacher preparation
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          2  programs.

          3                 - a variety of practical teaching

          4  experiences.

          5                 - a sound understanding of student

          6  developmental levels and the learning needs of

          7  students.

          8                 - of course, the strong collaboration

          9  of education faculty and faculty in the arts and

         10  sciences, along with local schools, parents and

         11  other community members is an essential part of

         12  these regulations.

         13                 The regulations hold significant

         14  implications for the colleges. For example:

         15                 - They require institutions to have

         16  teacher education programs accredited by a

         17  professional accrediting body for teacher education.

         18                 This accreditation must be achieved

         19  by December 31st, 2004.

         20                 - The regulations also link the

         21  continued registration of teacher education programs

         22  with institutional results and program results on

         23  the New York State Teacher Certification

         24  Examinations.

         25                 Beginning next year, teacher
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          2  education programs will be subject to registration

          3  review and possible deregistration if fewer than 80

          4  percent of their graduates fail to pass the required

          5  teacher certification examinations.

          6                 I note the regulations allow that the

          7  deficient programs can submit a corrective action

          8  plan to the State Education Department, and if this

          9  plan is approved, they will be provided with the

         10  opportunity to demonstrate program improvement over

         11  a period of time.

         12                 - The regulations also revise

         13  certificate titles for classroom teachers by

         14  introducing new early childhood and middle school

         15  certificate titles, and they require teacher

         16  education institutions to modify their baccalaureate

         17  programs to coincide with the new requirements by

         18  September 1st, 2000. Master's level and other

         19  programs must be changed by September 1st, 2001.

         20                 The regulations replace the current

         21  permanent teaching certificate with professional

         22  teaching certificates that will require continued

         23  competence of teachers by means of a recertification

         24  process every five years.

         25                 The State also plans to stop issuing
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          2  temporary licenses in 2003. This item should be of

          3  particular concern given the shortage of teachers

          4  for us here in New York City.

          5                 The regulations eliminate transcript

          6  evaluation, which requires that teachers obtaining

          7  their certification through a registered education

          8  program at one of the colleges. The colleges are

          9  expected to develop preparatory programs that

         10  support alternate routes to certification, and the

         11  top program which you saw on the video represents

         12  one such route which we are working on very

         13  diligently.

         14                 Our colleges have moved aggressively

         15  to comply with the challenges presented by the new

         16  Regents requirements. They have identified and

         17  worked to correct programmatic weaknesses, tightened

         18  admission requirements, raised standards, and are

         19  phasing out a number of education offerings that are

         20  in low demand in order to focus available resources

         21  on the areas of teacher shortage.

         22                 They have also strengthened their

         23  collaborations with the schools. Specific activities

         24  include establishing higher admission and

         25  progression standards to ensure that the programs
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          2  will meet the new regents requirements, planning for

          3  professional accreditation, and prioritizing the

          4  replacement of full-time faculty positions in order

          5  to improve faculty student ratios and strengthen

          6  liberal arts and science program components.

          7                 This has been a top priority of the

          8  University's budget request now for several years.

          9                 The colleges have been provided with

         10  resources that support new support staff positions

         11  that can oversee student teaching in the public

         12  schools, and assist with school college

         13  collaboration.

         14                 The colleges are providing students

         15  with opportunities to develop better test taking

         16  skills and a more comprehensive understanding of the

         17  teacher certification examination contents.

         18                 Student writing proficiency,

         19  identified as a programmatic weakness from the

         20  certification test outcomes, is being addressed by

         21  means of a University-wide writing across the

         22  curriculum initiative, and by means of workshops,

         23  additional college writing courses and/or individual

         24  student work plans.

         25                 As non-native speakers of English
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          2  experience the most difficulty on the written

          3  analysis and expression subpart of the certification

          4  exam, the college efforts are focused on helping

          5  these students improve their writing skills.

          6                 As half of the education majors

          7  represent transfer students, and most of these

          8  initiate their college studies at a community

          9  college, we are strengthening and expanding the

         10  articulated dual joint associate degree,

         11  baccalaureate degree programs between the senior and

         12  community colleges that lead to teacher

         13  certification.

         14                 This will ensure that community

         15  college students transferring into education

         16  programs will have the necessary general education

         17  background.

         18                 At present dual joint programs exist

         19  between the following community and senior colleges.

         20                 Bronx Community College and Lehman

         21  College, Queens Borough Community College, and

         22  Queens College, LaGuardia Community College and

         23  Queens College, Kings Borough Community College and

         24  Brooklyn College and one is current under

         25  development between the Borough of Manhattan

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  Community College and City College.

          3                 As the State Education Department

          4  moves to implement its new standards for

          5  institutional accountability, the colleges are being

          6  provided with reports that indicate the number of

          7  individuals the institution recommended for

          8  certification and the percent of those individuals

          9  who successfully completed all the tests required

         10  for that credential. Recommended students represent

         11  those students that have completed all the

         12  requirements of their teacher education program.

         13  Recent test scores for the University's recommended

         14  students reflected significant improvement over the

         15  institutional past rates which are somewhat

         16  misleading, as they do not allow one to

         17  differentiate between the performance of teacher

         18  education students, and other students who were

         19  matriculated at the college and decided to take the

         20  teacher certification examination because teaching

         21  positions were available.

         22                 As a result, institutional pass rates

         23  do not accurately reflect the performance or the

         24  effectiveness of the college's teacher education

         25  programs.
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          2                 While the 1997/'98 outcomes for our

          3  recommended students appear to satisfy the Regents

          4  expectation, these test scores do not reflect the

          5  new, more rigorous teacher certification exam

          6  passing standards that are being phased in gradually

          7  over a three-year period that began last fall.

          8                 It is essential therefore that the

          9  colleges maintain efforts to strengthen their

         10  programs and comply with the more demanding regents

         11  regulations. It is also essential that we continue

         12  to seek the additional resources that the colleges

         13  will need to attain compliance with the regulations.

         14                 To further systemic program

         15  improvements, the University has also reached out to

         16  the broad range of educational resources that exist

         17  within the City to form partnerships that will

         18  strengthen out teacher preparation efforts.

         19                 For example, we have formed a unique

         20  higher education partnership with the Lincoln Center

         21  Institute. The Institute is the educational arm for

         22  Lincoln Center. This will help to aesthetic

         23  education into our teacher preparation offerings.

         24                 As part of this collaboration,

         25  college faculty, Lincoln Center Institute staff and
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          2  teaching artists meet regularly to participate in

          3  workshops discussions and other artistic work

          4  sessions.

          5                 These activities serve to build

          6  common understandings of art in its various forms,

          7  and of how engaging the arts can help teachers find

          8  new strategies to enliven learning. The arts are

          9  pursued in this context, not just as a series of

         10  concerts, exhibitions or performances, but as a

         11  source of educational practice.

         12                 This collaboration serves to enrich

         13  the education of our students and the effectiveness

         14  of our faculty.

         15                 It represents the true partnership,

         16  as all programs are shared equally between the

         17  University and the Lincoln Center Institute.

         18                 A similar partnership is currently

         19  being developed with the Museum of Natural History,

         20  and this will lead to the development of jointly

         21  sponsored masters levels programs that will help

         22  prepare middle school and high school science

         23  teachers.

         24                 The University has also worked in

         25  partnership with the Board of Education on a
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          2  national Science Foundation sponsored urban systemic

          3  initiative grant that has allowed us to develop new

          4  student performance standards for mathematics and

          5  the sciences.

          6                 The mathematics performance standards

          7  were completed next fall and are currently being

          8  integrated throughout the system, while the new

          9  science standards are in the process of being

         10  printed and will be distributed in the near future.

         11                 The implementation of these

         12  performance standards has and will be the focus of a

         13  major Board of Education in-service teacher

         14  development effort.

         15                 These performance standards documents

         16  also represent texts that will be used on the

         17  college's teaching methods courses to stress the

         18  student learning standards.

         19                 I have brought with me today copies

         20  of these documents which resulted from the joint

         21  collaboration. The math standards, which were issued

         22  last fall, and this is an advanced copy science

         23  standards. It covers all of the state learning

         24  standards of pre-kindergarten up through the 12th

         25  grade and provides a framework for teachers in
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          2  helping them to develop curriculum and ensure that

          3  the students will meet state standards.

          4                 I should just emphasize these were

          5  not content standards any longer but they are called

          6  performance standards, because the students must

          7  demonstrate a level of performance, not simply the

          8  memorization of a particular formula or reference

          9  item.

         10                 As most of us are aware, the need for

         11  qualified teachers in the City is likely to increase

         12  significantly over the next several years.

         13                 New York City Board of Education has

         14  projected the minimum of 30 to 39,000 new teachers

         15  that will be needed over the next four years in

         16  order to satisfy the anticipated demand, and this

         17  estimate does not include the additional teachers

         18  that might be needed to support Universal Pre-K and

         19  early class size reduction programs.

         20                 The State Education Department has

         21  indicated that New York certifies more teachers on

         22  an annual basis than are needed by the State Public

         23  Schools.

         24                 However, many teaching certificates

         25  are issued for subject areas and grade levels that
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          2  are not in high demand. As a result, almost 10,000

          3  of New York State's teachers are currently

          4  uncertified or teaching with temporary licenses

          5  because they are teaching outside their field of

          6  certification.

          7                 The vast majority of these are in New

          8  York City, where public schools have experienced the

          9  difficulty in attracting the required number of

         10  certified teachers.

         11                 New York City's difficulties in

         12  attracting teachers is complicated by a national

         13  teacher shortage, especially in areas of mathematics

         14  and science. And the incentives and salaries being

         15  offered to new teachers by school districts another

         16  part of the state and the country also complicates

         17  this issue.

         18                 I would note that last week we had a

         19  series of visitors from the City of Atlanta, who

         20  were recruiting students at Hunter College, and

         21  other colleges in the University. In particular they

         22  were looking for math science students, so it is not

         23  just the Board of Education that recruits locally.

         24                 The University is actively assisting

         25  the Board of Education in efforts to recruit
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          2  qualified teachers, and we have undertaken a number

          3  of programmatic initiatives that will help attract

          4  highly qualified students to careers in teaching.

          5  One such effort involves the teaching opportunity

          6  program, which was highlighted in the video earlier.

          7                 This program represents a

          8  City-university based incentive program carried out

          9  in collaboration with the New York City Board of

         10  Education.

         11                 The program provides incentive

         12  scholarships and special training to highly

         13  qualified baccalaureate program graduates seeking to

         14  pursue a career in teaching.

         15                 The program recruits under graduate

         16  students, recent graduates and career changes with

         17  academic majors that have been identified as current

         18  and future areas of teacher shortage.

         19                 The program's focus is currently on

         20  recruiting candidates with degrees in mathematics

         21  and science, including biology, chemistry, physics,

         22  the earth sciences and related analytical fields,

         23  such as engineering and medical and health sciences.

         24                 The program provides participants

         25  with an intensive summer preparation program. It
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          2  grants scholarship recipients a stipend of $2,000 to

          3  support their summer program attendance. It provides

          4  them with a full-time teaching position in New York

          5  City public schools once they complete the summer

          6  program.

          7                 It informs of all of their

          8  requirements for state certification and helps them

          9  prepare for the state certification examinations.

         10                 We work with the Board of Education

         11  and the principals to ensure a supportive school

         12  environment, by means of mentor support and an

         13  orientation program for participants during their

         14  first year of teaching.

         15                 I would note also that the program

         16  grants a full tuition labor for graduate study,

         17  leading to a master's degree only in a targeted

         18  shortage area.

         19                 We initiated this program last

         20  spring, targeting our recruitment to science and

         21  math majors, with a goal of awarding 50 scholarships

         22  in the first year.

         23                 We received 143 applications, awarded

         24  53 scholarships, 51 students completed the summer

         25  program and at present 49 of them have been placed
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          2  in high schools and middle schools throughout the

          3  City.

          4                 The first cohort of scholarship

          5  recipients was divided roughly 60/40, between those

          6  seeking to teach science and those seeking to teach

          7  math. The group is quite diverse and includes recent

          8  college graduates, career changers, and parents

          9  seeking to join the profession.

         10                 The group also reflects the diversity

         11  in culture and heritage that makes this City such a

         12  great place.

         13                 In this regard, I note that while 29

         14  were CUNY graduates, others came from other colleges

         15  in New York and colleges in universities around the

         16  country and several receive their undergraduate

         17  training abroad.

         18                 One of the most promising aspects of

         19  this initiative is that virtually every foundation

         20  and corporate entity that we have approached to help

         21  support the program has responded positively, and to

         22  date we have required commitments of over $460,000

         23  exclusive of monies that the University has put

         24  forth.

         25                 For example, the Jewish Foundation
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          2  for the Education of Women has provided $275 that

          3  will support 115 scholarships over the three-year

          4  period. The Greenwald Foundation has given us

          5  $100,000 to assist with Program Start-Up. Other

          6  contributors include New York Community Trust, Chase

          7  Manhattan Bank, the Spingold Foundation, the Gutman

          8  Foundation and JP Morgan.

          9                 Based on the program's initial

         10  success, JP Morgan just last week indicated that

         11  they would consider an additional $125,000

         12  commitment. This support clearly reflects the

         13  widespread public interest in improving education

         14  provided by our schools, and the concern that our

         15  teachers be fully qualified.

         16                 In addition, it shows the willingness

         17  to support activities that can further these

         18  objectives.

         19                 During the coming year, the program

         20  will remain focused on the recruitment and

         21  preparation of science and math teachers, and it

         22  will be expanded to award 100 scholarships.

         23                 I will note that the University has

         24  asked the state, via our budget request to assist us

         25  in supporting the tuition waivers granted to these
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          2  top scholars.

          3                 The colleges participating in the

          4  initial program cycle were Brooklyn College, Hunter

          5  College, and Lehman College. Each college developed

          6  a unique summer program involving college-based

          7  course work and mentored field placements in high

          8  schools and middle schools.

          9                 Hunter College and Lehman College

         10  focused primarily on preparing science teachers,

         11  while Brooklyn College focused on preparing math

         12  teachers.

         13                 The top scholars are now attending

         14  specially designed masters degree programs at these

         15  colleges.

         16                 A second initiative that we have

         17  requested start-up funding for involves the

         18  establishment of a program, again in cooperation

         19  with the Board of Education, that would provide

         20  additional support and assistance to

         21  paraprofessionals seeking to complete teacher

         22  education programs and attain state certification.

         23                 This initiative parallels Regents

         24  priorities and proposes to build on existing support

         25  programs for paraprofessionals.
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          2                 Over 2000 paraprofessionals are

          3  enrolled in the University and many with proper

          4  support have the potential of completing a teacher

          5  education program and the certification requirements

          6  for teaching.

          7                 The University is also engaged in

          8  establishing leadership programs and is in the final

          9  stages for approving a doctoral program in education

         10  that has a focus on policy studies and curriculum.

         11                 My colleagues from the colleges and

         12  several of our students will describe specific

         13  projects and a wide range of activities underway on

         14  the campuses that serve to strengthen our teacher

         15  education programs and support activities within the

         16  schools.

         17                 I will end by again expressing the

         18  University's gratitude to you, Chair Marshall, and

         19  to the City Council Committee on Higher Education

         20  for your continued support.

         21                 The University plays a critical role

         22  in support of public education. We understand the

         23  importance of this task and the need to rise to the

         24  challenges that the Regents have placed before us.

         25                 The colleges are prepared to meet
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          2  these challenges and are actively responding to the

          3  needs of the public schools for qualified teachers.

          4                 I would be pleased to answer any

          5  questions that you might have.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you for

          8  that excellent testimony.

          9                 I would like to also inform everyone

         10  that we have been joined by some of my other

         11  colleagues.

         12                 To my extreme right is Martin Golden,

         13  and next to him is Bill Perkins and Steve DiBrienza

         14  is to my left.

         15                 We thank you for your testimony

         16  today, and if you could sum up or if you have a

         17  broad picture. Are we going to meet the numbers? Are

         18  we going to be able to have a teaching force enough

         19  to meet the needs of our public schools.

         20                 DR. HOTZLER: To be very frank with

         21  you, that is a serious question for us. The pending

         22  retirement of over 21,000 teachers at the conclusion

         23  of the current contract represents a major obstacle

         24  I believe for all of us.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: So, in other
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          2  words that is still a big question out there. I

          3  believe it poses a big question for us, and despite

          4  the efforts of the colleges, which I believe is

          5  focused on trying to enhance the effectiveness of

          6  their programs to ensure that they meet state

          7  requirements and to move as many students as

          8  possible into these programs, this is but a small

          9  number of the students that are required.

         10                 I would note that the Board of

         11  Education's projections for math and science

         12  teachers alone are approximately 1,000 a year for

         13  the next five years that they run out the

         14  projections for. That is a significant number of

         15  math and science teachers. I think if we added up

         16  all of the math and science majors that are

         17  currently in education programs, not only within

         18  CUNY but in the City, it would be a fraction, a

         19  small fraction of that number, and that was really

         20  the primary driver behind our interest in moving our

         21  scholarship programs into math an science to begin

         22  with, because the market, as you know, for math and

         23  science graduates, is a good one right now, and for

         24  those people to consider accepting a $30,000

         25  teaching assignment when they could easily be
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          2  getting $40,000 or more in the private sector, that

          3  is a hard one to expect them to turn down and as a

          4  result many of our science education programs in

          5  particular were not well enrolled.

          6                 This program actually serves several

          7  purposes in addition to providing the schools with

          8  math and science teachers, it is helping us to

          9  jumpstart some of our master's level science

         10  education programs because these top scholars, as we

         11  indicated, are now attending our master's programs,

         12  they have a tuition waiver, and this will allow us

         13  to re-establish those programs. The programs in

         14  science even at Hunter and Lehman were struggling

         15  because of the market demand for science and math

         16  majors.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, did I

         18  hear you say you have a requirement for 21,000

         19  teachers, is that in the coming term, in September?

         20                 DR. HOTZLER: No. The Board of

         21  Education I believe has run-outs and projections

         22  showing that they will need almost 40,000 teachers

         23  over the next four or five years. Part of that

         24  number is driven by the fact that at the end of

         25  their current contract there is basically -- it

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  reaches a point where retirement becomes a viable

          3  option for a lot of people and they estimate that at

          4  that point over 21,000 of their current teachers

          5  will be eligible to take advantage of the

          6  retirement, so that is sort of a blip in the

          7  retirement cycle and there is a lot of concern about

          8  that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I didn't hear

         10  you mention any programs that would be aimed at

         11  keeping some of those retiring teachers. After all,

         12  they have a mountain of experience that we could

         13  use. Do we have some incentives for them?

         14                 DR. HOTZLER: I have heard that there

         15  is some discussion at the Board of Ed looking at

         16  ways that they may be able to flatten that curve a

         17  little bit, but I am not aware of any particular

         18  initiatives that they might have under discussion.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, we need

         20  to produce at least about 5,000 to 6,000 teachers,

         21  at least out of the CUNY system, we only really put

         22  in about 25 percent of the teachers.

         23                 DR. HOTZLER: You are right. Let me

         24  point out also there is another factor here that I

         25  think we have to consider. Many of our best
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          2  graduates are recruited elsewhere and this is

          3  another --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, we know.

          5                 DR. HOTZLER: And this is a problem. I

          6  mentioned the incident just last week of recruiters

          7  from Atlanta that were at Hunter College, but they

          8  don't have to go to Atlanta, they can go to Nassau,

          9  Westchester, and we do feel, although I don't have

         10  specific statistics on this, as many as a third of

         11  our graduates go elsewhere, so we have to see how we

         12  can provide incentives to keep them home, I think

         13  that would be very helpful.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That is beyond

         15  the scope of the City University, isn't it? We are

         16  going to have to pay our teachers more money and

         17  compete salary-wise with some of these universities

         18  and so on --

         19                 DR. HOTZLER: Without question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: -- And school

         21  systems around the country.

         22                 You mentioned linkages between the

         23  community colleges and the senior colleges, could

         24  you tell us a little bit more about that? How is

         25  that moving along?
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          2                 DR. HOTZLER: Actually in a few

          3  instances it is working well, but let me start from

          4  the beginning perhaps.

          5                 The community colleges offer quite a

          6  few programs that prepare students for what is

          7  termed work in early childhood settings. However,

          8  with the regulations that the State now has, which

          9  is rather detailed in terms of the required

         10  preparation for teachers, the community colleges

         11  have to work more closely with the senior colleges

         12  to ensure that they are not receiving child care

         13  type instruction and course work but actually a

         14  strong foundation in the liberal arts and sciences.

         15                 So, what has happened over the past

         16  several years is that the community colleges have

         17  evolved separate, what is referred to as dual joint

         18  programs with a senior college partner. Which

         19  essentially places the first two years of the

         20  teacher education program at a community college.

         21                 This arrangement is separately

         22  registered by the State Education Department and

         23  ideally guarantees the community college student a

         24  seat in the teacher education program upon the

         25  successful completion of the program at the
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          2  community college.

          3                 The programs started several years

          4  ago. To be perfectly honest, some of them are being

          5  revised. In particular because of the new

          6  regulations from the state that have now made the

          7  programs more demanding. And we have to defer in

          8  such instances to the needs of the senior college,

          9  because the state is holding the senior college

         10  responsible for the performance of the students in

         11  their program, and if a portion of that program is

         12  taught at a community college, then we have to

         13  require the community college to ensure that they

         14  are completing their half of the requirements. So

         15  programs at Bronx and Queens and Brooklyn are being

         16  revised to ensure that we meet these new standards.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, the

         18  articulation process here is very, very important

         19  and I am an early childhood teacher and I receive my

         20  training at Queens College, in areas that really

         21  help teachers to enjoy teaching, all of the

         22  behavioral sciences that have helped them to

         23  understand what it means to educate children, it

         24  seems to me that we could move some of those courses

         25  in depth, in greater depth into the community
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          2  college level, as we move on -- as they go on into

          3  the senior colleges they could move more into

          4  subject areas and so on.

          5                 Sometimes I look at those programs

          6  that are going on in the community colleges and I

          7  don't see them as being as meaningful as they could

          8  be for future teachers.

          9                 Now, of course, I am interested in

         10  seeing any programs that you have existing and I

         11  would like to be corrected on that, but I think we

         12  could do a lot more on our community college level

         13  to prepare, you know, we talk about children's

         14  readiness to read, we could work on teachers'

         15  readiness to teach.

         16                 DR. HOTZLER: I agree with you.

         17                 I think part of the issue here that

         18  we have to contend with is the fact that the State

         19  Education Department is very particular in terms of

         20  what it recognizes as education credits that are

         21  taken at a community college, and so that is a

         22  concern for us and it is something that we have to

         23  work on carefully.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I didn't say

         25  anything about lowering standards.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2                 DR. HOTZLER: No, no.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

          4                 DR. HOTZLER: I should point out that

          5  actually, between the five community colleges that

          6  are currently engaged in this, there is almost 2,000

          7  students that are in those tracks that would

          8  potentially lead to teacher education programs. Many

          9  of those students will find that perhaps they can't

         10  meet the requirements, but it is a very viable

         11  source for us, and actually one of the bigger

         12  concerns we have is that on the senior college side,

         13  because of the difficulties they have had with

         14  senior college budgets, some of those programs are

         15  actually not as large as they used to be.

         16                 We are sort of caught in a little bit

         17  of a dilemma. On the one hand, the demand for more

         18  teachers and the need for us to expand the programs,

         19  and on the other side, the higher regulations and

         20  the requirements that the state has placed on us,

         21  which threaten the programs, so at the moment we are

         22  in a bit of a balancing act. We have to ensure that

         23  the programs meet the standards and are effective,

         24  and at the same time try to move as many students as

         25  possible through them. So we are really balancing
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          2  that at the moment, and I think once we are through

          3  this period of adjustment and revising our programs

          4  and ensure that they can meet the state

          5  requirements, hopefully there will be some resources

          6  that will allow us to think about expanding those

          7  programs even more.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I guess it is

          9  just the word that child care bothered me that you

         10  used earlier.

         11                 DR. HOTZLER: Well, I said that

         12  because there are a group of programs at the

         13  community colleges that, as you know, are not

         14  intended to move people into future programs that

         15  lead to certification, and we have to make a

         16  distinction, and I think the students have to be

         17  counseled early on, that if they truly wish to go

         18  into a certified teacher education program, there is

         19  a different path that they must follow.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Exactly.

         21                 DR. HOTZLER: And that is something

         22  that the colleges are very aware of.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Do any of my

         24  colleagues have questions? No.

         25                 Well, we want to thank you very much.
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          2  Of course, we could keep you here all day asking

          3  questions, particularly of your Department, but we

          4  have so many wonderful speakers today. I want to

          5  thank you, and thank the Chancellor for sending us

          6  today.

          7                 DR. HOTZLER: You are right, listening

          8  to the students is I think more informative than

          9  listening to me sometimes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, it is

         11  always important. We try to always include them. We

         12  are also very fortunate to have the chair of the

         13  Higher Education Committee of the New York State

         14  Assembly, the Assemblyman Ed Sullivan with us today,

         15  and he is going to be our next presenter.

         16                 Ed, we welcome you to our house.

         17                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Thank you,

         18  Madam Chair. Thank you for inviting me. Members of

         19  the City Council, and particularly my own Council

         20  Member Bill Perkins, good morning.

         21                 I am coming here to talk to you about

         22  the crisis that exists around City University.

         23  Before I get into that, I would like to just point

         24  out that if ever there comes up a need for a

         25  psychological study of paranoia, I suggest that the
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          2  people who run this building might provide very good

          3  grounds for a study.

          4                 Now we come in through the service

          5  entrance, along with the people who take out the

          6  garbage, and I have no problem with that. I for a

          7  living have taken out garbage in my life, so I don't

          8  have any problem with that. It just seems it gets

          9  funnier and funnier.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, we have a

         11  lot of concern about the public access to their own

         12  City Hall.

         13                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Exactly.

         14                 And apropos, let me just say, Madam

         15  Chair, that some of us have a nostalgia for the old

         16  Board of Estimate, we have had many problems, but

         17  one of the good things about it was we had these

         18  constant hearings going on and you heard from the

         19  people of the City, and just sitting there was a

         20  great instruction about the thoughts of the people

         21  in the City.

         22                 You and the Council now have taken up

         23  that role, and I think you are doing a wonderful

         24  job, and I think the people of the City are very

         25  grateful to you and to your colleagues, for the role
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          2  you are doing in listening to the people of this

          3  City who are very articulate.

          4                 Let me make a few points, if I may.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Just a point on

          6  that.

          7                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Our audience,

          9  of course, has been expanded through media, because

         10  all of our sessions are on television and many

         11  people tell all of us how they watch through the

         12  late hours, they are actually watching what we are

         13  doing, which is also great.

         14                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Yes, now that

         15  Seinfeld is no longer at 11:00, many of us watch

         16  here.

         17                 I want to talk about a couple of

         18  things that have to do with the City University.

         19                 The most impressive statistic to me

         20  in recent years has been the following:

         21                 Seventy-six percent of the high

         22  school seniors in New York State take the SAT exam.

         23  I am not saying this as a tribute to the SAT exam

         24  particularly, which I will discuss in a minute, but

         25  the notion is clearly there that they want to go to
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          2  college. You don't take the SAT exam unless you

          3  expect or plan or hope to go to college. When you

          4  add to that 76 percent, a percent that plan to go to

          5  colleges which don't require the SATs, or when you

          6  add to that people who are going to go into the

          7  service, the military service and figure, well, they

          8  will build up credit there so they can go to college

          9  a little more easily when they get out, you have

         10  well into the 90 percent, the young people who want

         11  to go to college, who expect to go to college, who

         12  are taking steps to go to college, this is a change

         13  which some of the leaders of our City, of our state,

         14  and frankly, of our universities have yet to

         15  internalize. It is there. The young people are

         16  ready, they are anxious, they are eager. The old

         17  people, I am 66, the old people are not ready, they

         18  are not anxious, well they are anxious, they are

         19  nervous, because you know what, everyone is going to

         20  be educated. Oh, my God, that is going to be a

         21  problem. So they are a little bit nervous and I

         22  think part of our problems come from the fact that

         23  the people who are used to being part of the ruling

         24  elite are seeing that elite quality slipping away

         25  and it makes them worry. So, they want to bar the
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          2  door. That is basically what it is. They want to

          3  stand in the school house door to take a phrase from

          4  a couple of decades ago, and that is what we see

          5  here.

          6                 A particularly telling editorial

          7  appeared in the Daily News, when the City University

          8  said, oh, what the heck, what is the fuss all about,

          9  we are only going to ask 150 students in the whole

         10  university to go to community college. That was in

         11  the report that came out. And I don't believe that

         12  report, but nevertheless, that was what they said

         13  and the Daily News --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: For

         15  remediation?

         16                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: What?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: 150 for

         18  remediation.

         19                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: For

         20  remediation, right. And the Daily News editorial

         21  went crazy, said, you mean we are only kicking out

         22  150? You know.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Exactly.

         24                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Kick out more,

         25  you know.
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          2                 So, you see, that betrayed what the

          3  purpose of this new policy is, it is to bar the

          4  door.

          5                 Now, I am going to talk about, if I

          6  may, just take a minute or two, the SATs, the 150

          7  student figure, and some other things.

          8                 The SAT exam is being presented as a

          9  kind of leading exam so-to-speak for remedial

         10  courses. It is being suggested that the SAT be given

         11  to all students who take remediation to see if the

         12  remediation took, you know, to see if they really

         13  learned something in the remediation.

         14                 Well, the people who will tell you

         15  that is a bad idea, are the people who write the SAT

         16  exam. They say that is not the purpose of the SAT

         17  exam. And to use that as a leading exam for remedial

         18  courses would be very dangerous.

         19                 Let me give you a couple of examples.

         20  We have heard that there are going to be, if not

         21  flagship colleges, then flagship programs at the

         22  City University. Now, I have no problem with

         23  accelerated courses for those students who can

         24  handle accelerated courses, I don't have a problem.

         25  But if the SAT is used as an entry mark for some of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  those programs, and many of them will focus on

          3  mathematics, or the ancillary programs around

          4  mathematics, it should be noted that in the higher

          5  reaches of the math scores of the SAT exams, from

          6  700 out of 800 upward in math, women come in less

          7  than half in the numbers of men. So, if we are going

          8  to have flagship programs, these are going to be

          9  programs dominated by males. That is number one.

         10                 Number two, in the overall, the

         11  combined scores of math and verbal scores in the

         12  SAT, African-Americans come in 200 points below that

         13  of white Americans, and Hispanic Americans come in

         14  150 points below that of white non-Hispanic

         15  Americans.

         16                 Now, what does that mean? Well, we

         17  know why that happens. Because in elementary and

         18  secondary schools these are groups that get

         19  shortchanged. Women are told, oh, math is not for

         20  you, dear, why don't you study literature or

         21  whatever. We know that that happens. We know that

         22  women are steered away from mathematics and away

         23  from science and into other programs. We know that.

         24  So that is the reason for this, it is not without

         25  reason.
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          2                 And we know that students who go to

          3  schools in African-American communities and Hispanic

          4  communities, we know those schools are underfunded,

          5  we know those classes are overcrowded, we know that

          6  there is no one there making sure that the kids tow

          7  the mark and get ahead, we know that happens, you

          8  had enough hearings here to point that out. So, we

          9  know the reason for it, but I always thought that

         10  that is why we have CUNY. That is why we have City

         11  University, to rectify in part, not totally, but to

         12  rectify in part the injustices that occur in this

         13  City and this country for that matter.

         14                 Those figures incidently are for New

         15  York, but they are the same nationwide, to rectify

         16  these injustices, and to change things around and to

         17  give people who were shortchanged in elementary and

         18  secondary school, and we know that happened, to give

         19  those who were shortchanged another shot if you have

         20  the energy to do it.

         21                 Elementary school is compulsory. CUNY

         22  is not compulsory, but the kids want to go anyway,

         23  there is a compulsion within them. They don't have

         24  to be told by the law what to do, they know what

         25  they have to do and they are ready to do it, and to
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          2  put a barrier in front of them is unconscionable.

          3                 The SAT people themselves, the

          4  college board people will tell you themselves that

          5  cutoffs are inappropriate, an inappropriate use of

          6  SATs. If 900 were used as a cutoff,

          7  African-Americans, whose average number is in the

          8  800s, the mid-800s, a majority of African-Americans

          9  wouldn't meet the cutoff. A majority of

         10  African-Americans would automatically be barred from

         11  some of the colleges who have elitist pretensions.

         12  Forgive me for using that truthful word.

         13                 So, I feel that the SATs, if you have

         14  any influence, Madam Chair, and I know you do, would

         15  you please try to examine this, and I don't have it

         16  with me but I will supply you with these records,

         17  which are from the SAT -- they are from the college

         18  board people, and would you please try to read them

         19  over or ask your staff to read them over and then

         20  take appropriate steps as to whether the SAT is

         21  really the right mechanism for entry or for a

         22  leading exam. I submit that it is not.

         23                 Now, as for the 150 students, you

         24  know, moving -- of the 150 students who are -- let's

         25  say for the sake of the argument are in fact
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          2  unprepared to enter senior colleges, are their

          3  presence, 150 students, scattered around ten senior

          4  college campuses, is that what CUNY's problem is? It

          5  is just unbelievable. It is not credible. Is that

          6  why An Institution Adrift, according to the Schmidt

          7  Report, is that why the Mayor says it is a disgrace?

          8  Is that why the Chair of the CUNY Board of Trustees

          9  said that degrees are worthless all because of these

         10  150 students? You don't believe that, I don't

         11  believe that, nobody believes that. So, why is it

         12  put forward? And if they are fooling us about this,

         13  what else are they fooling us about? That is my

         14  concern.

         15                 If these numbers are not believable,

         16  and they are not, what else are they fooling us

         17  about? How many times are they going to try to trick

         18  us, before we come to the conclusion that this

         19  operation is a trickster operation?

         20                 Now, using these numbers is not

         21  appropriate, and using the SATs I think is not

         22  appropriate. What would be appropriate? You don't

         23  have to be a rocket scientist to figure it out. What

         24  do we need? Smaller classes we need, smaller

         25  classes. More help for those students who are in
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          2  trouble. There are students who can read history

          3  wonderfully, they can't write down what their

          4  thoughts are very well, they need writers workshops

          5  to help them out. They have good logical minds, but

          6  they have trouble with the English language. They

          7  need workshops to help them out. These things cost

          8  money. They need the $35 million, $35 million,

          9  folks, that the Mayor of the City of New York

         10  refuses to give to the CUNY community colleges,

         11  although state law requires them to do it,

         12  unfortunately there was an exemption passed years

         13  and years ago and we cannot get that exemption

         14  repealed because the Mayor's political ally in

         15  Albany won't allow the repeal of the exemption. So,

         16  according to CUNY's books, not mine, the book that

         17  the Board of Trustees of CUNY puts out, the

         18  community colleges of City University are being

         19  shorted $35 million of their obligation, and I urge

         20  you, Madam Chair, and I urge the Council at large,

         21  not to pass a budget that allows that to continue.

         22  Please. Please. You have a right to ask me the same

         23  thing of the state budget.

         24                 Another thing we need is a rational

         25  look at remediation. If you can't pass a math test,
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          2  what does that mean? Can you multiply? Can you do

          3  multiplication with multi-digit multipliers? Can you

          4  do long division? Can you solve for X? Can you solve

          5  for two unknowns? Can you dissect an angle? These

          6  are specific things that we have got to tell the

          7  students this is what we expect you to be able to

          8  do, so that they can address themselves and their

          9  teachers can help them do it. Right now it is as

         10  whispy as a summer breeze. Nobody knows what is

         11  going to be on the test. Absolutely no idea what is

         12  going to be on the test. How can they possibly

         13  prepare for it? So we need some sort of

         14  rationalization.

         15                 We need an articulation, and I am

         16  glad that Bronx Community College has an

         17  articulation agreement with laymen. I am glad that

         18  is happening. But supposing the student who

         19  graduates from Bronx Community College wants to go

         20  to Hunter, or wants to go to Brooklyn, or wants to

         21  go to Queens or some other college? That should be a

         22  universal articulation agreement. It is disgraceful

         23  that the City University does not have an

         24  articulation agreement that will show exactly what

         25  the lines are from every single community college to
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          2  every single senior college. There is no reason we

          3  should say to a young person in the Bronx, well you

          4  are from the Bronx, stay in the Bronx, there is no

          5  reason we should say that to them. That is

          6  outrageous. That is outrageous, we shouldn't do

          7  that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And we did have

          9  a hearing on articulation, and we will be having a

         10  hearing on entrance requirements and the new

         11  profile, Prelude to Excellence --

         12                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We will be

         14  having a hearing and we are going to ask you to come

         15  back also and testify then.

         16                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: I will do that.

         17  I just have one more thing to say.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Go right ahead.

         19                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: The final

         20  thing, I am going to skip over the thing with the

         21  teachers because it is a real problem. We are going

         22  down a road and you know what, folks, the bridge is

         23  out. And we are driving down the road at 60 miles an

         24  hour and a couple of miles down the road there is no

         25  bridge, and we are going to go in the river.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That is the

          3  problem we are attacking with this hearing right

          4  now.

          5                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: And the final

          6  thing that I want to say is this: I beg you and I

          7  beg the people at CUNY, we have got to demand that

          8  the people who are in charge of City University make

          9  a public statement, every single New York City

         10  citizen, citizen or not, every single resident of

         11  New York City who wants to go to City University at

         12  any place, at any college, knock on the door, that

         13  door will open to every single person, that

         14  statement has got to be made publicly, and we have

         15  to make sure, and whatever needs those students

         16  have, the City University will address those needs.

         17  Please ask them to make that statement.

         18                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you for

         20  your statement and your energy and your enthusiasm

         21  for our City University.

         22                 I would like, though, to remind you

         23  that in all fairness to the present administration,

         24  the maintenance of effort clause that makes sure

         25  that we don't give less, it doesn't help us to give

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  more, preceded the present Mayor, it goes way back.

          3                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And the other

          5  point that you brought out in view of what we are

          6  discussing this morning about the SATs and how women

          7  score lower than men --

          8                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: On math. Only

          9  on math.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay. That's

         11  important today. Very important. Our teaching force

         12  today consists mainly of women, mainly of women. So

         13  we have got to strengthen women in math and we have

         14  got to review some of those tests.

         15                 I see that Council Member Perkins has

         16  a question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         18  very much for your testimony.

         19                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It was very

         21  informative.

         22                 But you skipped your comments on

         23  teachers.

         24                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Okay, do you

         25  want me to --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, I am

          3  anxious to hear them.

          4                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Well, we need

          5  more teachers, and in order to get more teachers,

          6  there need to be incentives for people who are well

          7  educated to go into the teaching profession, that

          8  often involves money. Very frankly, it involves

          9  working conditions and money. Some classes are

         10  tougher than other classes, and if we are going to

         11  ask teachers to take tough classes, then they have

         12  to be given a little time, a little R and R after

         13  that so they can regroup. You have to plan that.

         14  When you have a tough class you have to plan that.

         15                 I was a teacher for 15 years, some of

         16  my classes were easier than others. When I had tough

         17  classes I had to prepare for them longer, and so we

         18  have to have better working conditions, more pay

         19  incentives, and we have to have a -- we know that

         20  the Year 2003 is going to come, that is not a

         21  question. And we know that certain number of

         22  teachers are going to leave that year, that is not a

         23  question either, so do we have the people in

         24  training now, who will be ready to teach in 2003, it

         25  is up to the Commissioner of Education of the State
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          2  of New York, it is up to the Chancellor of the Board

          3  of Education of New York City to work together and

          4  to assure the population that we do have the

          5  teachers in preparation now who are going to be able

          6  to take over for those who are going to leave. I

          7  don't think they have that yet, but they really

          8  should have that worked out.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: One of the

         10  concerns expressed by the previous person related to

         11  the competitiveness of the jurisdiction by

         12  comparison to New York, that we train them but they

         13  decide to go other places.

         14                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What would be

         16  more competitive for New York to do? Obviously

         17  salaries are important, what else do you need to do?

         18                 ASSEMBLY SULLIVAN: There are

         19  jurisdictions within an hour's drive of New York

         20  City where the amount spent per pupil is double what

         21  it is in New York City. In Great Neck, for example,

         22  the amount spent per pupil is twice what it is in

         23  New York City.

         24                 Now, I am not saying that we can

         25  match Great Neck, we probably can't, but we have got
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          2  to be able to be more competitive on a per student

          3  basis, how much does it cost per student to educate

          4  these people, and we have got to spend that money.

          5                 So we need that money, Councilman

          6  Perkins, there is no escaping it. We need to be able

          7  to pay teachers, we need smaller classes. You know,

          8  you have a young person who wants to be a teacher,

          9  they want to get people to understand the beauty of

         10  the English language, let's say. They are an English

         11  teacher in high school. They want to get their young

         12  people to understand the beauty of the English

         13  language, which is very beautiful. And, so, they

         14  have a class now of 38, and they being paid let's

         15  say $30,000. Within a short drive, they could get a

         16  class of 23 and be paid $40,000. Well, some will say

         17  I would rather have the $30,000, I would rather have

         18  the class of 38 it is more of a challenge to me. But

         19  some of them won't say that. Some of them will say,

         20  you know, I have got a family to raise, I will go

         21  for the $40,000 in the class of 23.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Ed, you know,

         23  if we make teaching more exciting, and we work hard

         24  on that, we will find teachers that are willing to

         25  take up that challenge.
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          2                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Because we will

          4  show them, this is where the action is. I have seen

          5  that happen. So, it is not only money, it is also

          6  the training that we give to teachers and inspire

          7  them to remain and to teach here.

          8                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: And the class

          9  size. It is much more exciting as the class gets

         10  down to manageable size. When it gets larger and

         11  larger, it is just harder to do.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We are always

         13  teaching teachers how to deal with the larger sizes,

         14  class sizes that they have, and giving them the

         15  support in those classrooms.

         16                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Right. Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Is your

         18  question answered, Council Member Perkins?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

         21                 Ed Sullivan, thank you very much for

         22  joining us today.

         23                 ASSEMBLYMAN SULLIVAN: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: You are always

         25  welcome here.
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          2                 Our next speaker will be President

          3  Caputo of Hunter College. David Caputo.

          4                 Hunter College was one of the first

          5  colleges established really to bring women into the

          6  higher education process and to train them to be

          7  teachers, and throughout the years Hunter has always

          8  been producing excellent teachers for us. So you

          9  have a big reputation to uphold.

         10                 DR. CAPUTO: Thank you. I always

         11  hesitate to follow Assemblyman Sullivan, but it is a

         12  great pleasure to do so.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: You are

         14  welcome.

         15                 DR. CAPUTO: Chairperson Marshall and

         16  members of the Committee, good morning. I have asked

         17  Dean Scott, Dean of our school to join me, in case

         18  you have some specific questions he might be able to

         19  answer.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Sure.

         21                 DR. CAPUTO: I was delighted to

         22  receive your invitation to appear before you, and I

         23  am pleased to be with you today. There can be no

         24  doubt that the new standards set by the Board of

         25  Regents will result in profound changes in the way
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          2  we educate our teachers. But they also present us

          3  with the splendid opportunity, the opportunity to

          4  serve the City, by improving the education our

          5  students receive so that they in turn are able to

          6  meet the need of the thousands of students enrolled

          7  in New York City public schools.

          8                 I am pleased to tell you that I serve

          9  as co-chair of the state professional standards and

         10  practices board for teaching. The Board is composed

         11  of educators and public representatives who consider

         12  critical issues in teaching and teacher education

         13  and make recommendations to the Regents and the

         14  Commissioner of Education.

         15                 As co-chair of the Board and as an

         16  example of my and Hunter's commitment to teacher

         17  education and training, I will take an active role

         18  in assessing teacher education requirements and in

         19  making pertinent recommendations to the Regents, as

         20  they reach their decisions regarding the new state

         21  regulations.

         22                 You have before you a prepared

         23  statement, I am going to skip over the background

         24  information on Hunter College and our long

         25  involvement of teacher education and read you a
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          2  concluding passage which is on page five.

          3                 Although it is impossible to know how

          4  many teachers were educated at Hunter since 1870,

          5  Hunter has in recent years trained thousands of

          6  students to become teachers, all the while requiring

          7  undergraduate education students to major in a

          8  liberal arts or science subject. Many of those

          9  Hunter graduates now serve in classrooms throughout

         10  the city. Hunter awards graduate degrees in special

         11  education, bilingual education, counseling and

         12  teaching education teaching English to speakers of

         13  other languages, to name just a few. And in fact,

         14  Hunter's graduate special education program is the

         15  most comprehensive such program within the City

         16  University. It includes preparation for those who

         17  wish to work with blind and visually impaired, or

         18  deaf and hard of hearing students. Hunter is the

         19  only CUNY college that offers these programs.

         20                 In the fall of 1998, the most recent

         21  year we have figures for, 530 undergraduate students

         22  were enrolled in the school of education, while

         23  1,842 graduate students were pursuing advanced

         24  degrees.

         25                 When Thomas Hunter established the
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          2  normal school, the City desperately needed more

          3  teachers to educate the children of the many

          4  immigrants then settling in New York. Today New York

          5  City is again a favored destination for immigrants.

          6  More than one-third of the people who live in the

          7  City were not born in the United States.

          8                 Hunter, whose students come from more

          9  than 80 countries and speak scores of languages

         10  reflects the City's population. The same is true of

         11  children enrolled in the public schools.

         12                 A resource room teacher in a middle

         13  class neighborhood in Queens reports her school has

         14  children who come from 23 countries, including

         15  Colombia, Ecuador, Peru, El Salvador, India, Israel

         16  and the former Soviet Union, Pakistan, China, Japan

         17  and the Philippines. Many of the children cannot

         18  speak English.

         19                 The Hunter College School of

         20  Education has a number of programs that demonstrate

         21  the college's commitment to urban education,

         22  child-centered instruction and the development of

         23  professional teachers and school administrators.

         24                 Speaking with remarkable foresight,

         25  Thomas Hunter said, "A teacher may be full of
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          2  theories, but correct ideas of instruction and

          3  government can only be obtained by actual practice

          4  amid the struggles of the recitation room."

          5                 Currently, Hunter's education

          6  programs ensure that every undergraduate student

          7  teacher now spends 275 hours in classrooms observing

          8  experienced teachers and in teacher preparation.

          9                 The Quality Urban Elementary School

         10  Teachers Program, or QUEST, is designed to prepare

         11  undergraduates who are prospective teachers to meet

         12  the needs of the city's elementary school students

         13  by helping them meet high, academic standards.

         14                 QUEST students become effective

         15  teachers by learning from experience. Every student

         16  in the QUEST Program spends some time every semester

         17  in New York City school rooms. This adds up to a

         18  total of 500 hours during this four-semester

         19  program.

         20                 Now for some 30 years, as part of

         21  Hunter's commitment to improve inner-city schools,

         22  the School of Education has had a very special

         23  relationship with the schools of Community School

         24  District Four in Harlem.

         25                 This district serves approximately
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          2  14,500 elementary and junior high school students

          3  from East Harlem and the surrounding community in

          4  grades pre-kindergarten through nine.

          5                 Of the 284 new teachers hired in this

          6  district for the past two years, approximately 163

          7  or 58 percent were graduates of Hunter's teacher

          8  education programs.

          9                 It is interesting to note that some

         10  of Hunter's full-time faculty in teacher education

         11  were once exemplary teachers in the schools of

         12  District Four.

         13                 Although our Teacher Education

         14  Programs have won many regional and national awards

         15  for program effectiveness, and the quality of our

         16  faculty, everyone in the School of Education is

         17  resolved to improve and expand our commitment to

         18  prepare effective teachers for the students enrolled

         19  in New York City schools.

         20                 Hunter School of Education now offers

         21  an MA in teaching English as a second language,

         22  preparing graduate students to work with students

         23  for whom English is a second language.

         24                 The professors involved in this

         25  program have local, national, regional and
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          2  international reputations, it is estimated, and you

          3  have discussed this figure before in your earlier

          4  testimony, but it is estimated that more than 30,000

          5  teachers will be needed in the City during the next

          6  five years as teachers eligible to retire do so.

          7                 To help meet the need for

          8  replacements and to prepare badly needed math and

          9  science teachers, Hunter is very much involved in a

         10  new program, the Teaching Opportunity Program or

         11  TOP.

         12                 This program, begun by CUNY, and

         13  described earlier by Dean Hotzler, is designed to

         14  attract outstanding college seniors and recent

         15  graduates who have bachelor's degrees in mathematics

         16  or sciences and a strong academic record to a career

         17  in teaching.

         18                 Now, although this program is in its

         19  first year, I am pleased to tell you that there are

         20  17 students enrolled at Hunter who have elected to

         21  join this effort in developing committed leaders to

         22  improving the quality of science and math. We expect

         23  to enroll another 30 TOP students this next summer.

         24                 Now, I am also justly proud of the

         25  caliber of the education given to Hunter students
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          2  returning for careers as educators. However, during

          3  the last eight years, the size and expertise of the

          4  faculty have been drastically reduced due to

          5  retrenchment and lines lost to retirement that were

          6  not replaced.

          7                 In 1990 there were 72 full-time

          8  teaching lines. By the fall of 1998, the number of

          9  full-time teaching lines had fallen to 52. These

         10  cuts and the increasing reliance on adjunct faculty,

         11  threatens the integrity of our program.

         12                 As lines have been cut, so have the

         13  amount of time needed to carry out the numerous and

         14  constantly changing requirements of City, State and

         15  professional governing bodies.

         16                 Like all members of the Hunter

         17  faculty, the dedicated professors in the school of

         18  education continue to do more with less.

         19                 They have developed plans to improve

         20  our programs to earn through demonstrations of

         21  excellence in the high quality of our programs,

         22  reaccreditation from the National Counsel of

         23  accreditation of teacher education. This will be

         24  done by docking and adhering to the standards

         25  required by accrediting organizations, including the
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          2  Board of Regents.

          3                 Our professors are keenly aware of

          4  the need for technological facilities to support

          5  personnel within the school of education. Faculty

          6  need more up-to-date equipment. They and their

          7  students are mastering this technology that they

          8  will need to enable them to utilize the technology

          9  equipment used in distance learning and network

         10  classrooms.

         11                 Now, the mission of the Hunter

         12  College School of Education is to train prospective

         13  teachers to meet the need of a large and

         14  increasingly diverse group of students from

         15  different ethnic, racial, linguistic, cultural and

         16  experiential background. Including students whose

         17  limited knowledge of English and poor associate

         18  economic circumstances place them at great risk of

         19  academic failure.

         20                 A five-year strategic plan was

         21  formulated by the faculty and the Dean last year to

         22  determine the best way for the School of Education

         23  to fulfill the promise of its mission statement.

         24                 To meet the new standards for

         25  assessing programs, we will utilize a comprehensive
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          2  array of standards for admissions, as well as

          3  methods of monitoring students' progress at

          4  different stages of the programs through a variety

          5  of performance-based measures.

          6                 I am pleased to note that Hunter's

          7  QUEST Program, which I mentioned earlier, already

          8  exceeds the field work component required by the new

          9  state regulations.

         10                 There is much to be done, and I can

         11  tell you that the changes that are coming in terms

         12  of the Regents and Commissioners changes will have

         13  far-reaching implications for all of the schools of

         14  education and for all teacher education programs.

         15                 But we must not overlook the

         16  significant accomplishment of Hunter School of

         17  Education to date. Figures for the 1997/'98 program

         18  year, as reported to us by the New York State

         19  Education Department, show that individuals

         20  recommended for a teaching certificate through the

         21  New York State Teachers Certification Examination

         22  scored very well. Ninety-five percent of those

         23  recommended for provisional certification met all

         24  test requirements at Hunter, as did 86 percent of

         25  those recommended for permanent certificates.
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          2                 Moreover, Hunter student scores far

          3  surpass the CUNY mean and equal or surpass the

          4  Statewide mean of the proposed Regents' standards.

          5                 Hunter will continue to meet the

          6  needs of New York City's ever-changing urban

          7  population by drawing on the considerable expertise

          8  of faculty and staff in urban education.

          9                 They are experts in bilingual

         10  education, teaching English to speakers of other

         11  languages, and school reform models as they apply to

         12  urban settings.

         13                 Moreover, the administrative

         14  oversight of the Hunter College campus schools for

         15  the gifted provides the school of education with the

         16  unique opportunity to demonstrate the compatibility

         17  of expertise and urban education and expertise in

         18  gifted education.

         19                 The intersection of urban and gifted

         20  education gives the school of education the

         21  potential to forge a unique identity and name in the

         22  field regionally, as well as nationally, providing

         23  opportunities for improving education everywhere,

         24  and especially for outreach efforts to the students

         25  of the City of New York.
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          2                 I would like to thank you for this

          3  opportunity to discuss the College's School of

          4  Education and close with one last point.

          5                 I know there is a tendency to feel

          6  that these are times of great crisis in teacher

          7  education, and there is in fact a renewed interest

          8  and a renewed sense of urgency, but I happen to feel

          9  that this is a time of great opportunity. It is a

         10  time of great opportunity for the faculty and the

         11  students going into education to really reassess the

         12  field and really develop new ways of reaching out to

         13  students and new ways of educating our students.

         14                 So, I am sure Dean Scott would join

         15  me in saying that while these are turbulent times,

         16  we think they are times that will ultimately lead to

         17  a much greater emphasis on quality teacher

         18  education.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to be

         20  here today, and I will be glad to answer any

         21  questions you might have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I am pleased to

         23  hear you say that. When I was preparing my opening

         24  remarks and looking at the crisis that we are in, I

         25  thought of the word rebirth, that it is a time, if
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          2  we are going to make meaningful change we should

          3  think of it in that way, and in education there are

          4  so many things that really don't change, we give

          5  them different names but intensifying those efforts

          6  and also finding new ways of training our teachers.

          7                 Do my colleagues have any questions?

          8                 Thank you very, very much for your

          9  testimony. Unless the Dean of Education would like

         10  to make a comment?

         11                 DEAN SCOTT: I agree with the

         12  President, and it is interesting, Assemblyman

         13  Sullivan and I are the same age and he has the

         14  benefit of going on. I have been a dean for 25 years

         15  now, am retiring soon, and I would just say give us

         16  the tools. We have done a lot with very little, we

         17  can do a heck of a lot more with the resources.

         18                 And I agree with the president, it is

         19  a great period for demands in teacher education. One

         20  of the nice things about this, we have gotten more

         21  resources in the last two or three years than I have

         22  received in my whole time proportionately as a dean,

         23  and that is a quarter of a century. So, I think it

         24  is a time of challenge, and I think it is a time of

         25  understanding and support. We have a great president
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          2  behind us and I think that helps.

          3                 DR. CAPUTO: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I just would

          5  like to add, it seems to me, we always need more

          6  full-time professors, but clearly I don't know how

          7  you can operate in the school of education without a

          8  good sizable faculty of full-time professors. They

          9  are following -- I mean, there is a whole process of

         10  following them and, you know, it is very, very

         11  important for education.

         12                 We know about the shortage of

         13  teachers, of professors, full-time professors, and

         14  Ed Sullivan did just leave, but fortunately they

         15  were able to override the Governor and place

         16  additional money for full-time faculty that we know

         17  will be distributed. We know that our City

         18  University is going to get a percentage of them, and

         19  they are sorely needed and we need to work on

         20  getting more.

         21                 Okay, thank you.

         22                 DR. CAPUTO: Very good. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I am going to

         24  have to run downstairs for a few minutes, but

         25  Councilwoman Robinson will proceed to chair the
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          2  hearing this morning.

          3                 We are having a very special press

          4  conference on City University and its chairman in

          5  particular, so I will be right back as soon as I

          6  can. I hate leaving, but it is in the scheduling.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Good

          8  morning. The next person to testify would be Judy

          9  Farrell for Borough President of the Bronx, Fernando

         10  Ferrer.

         11                 MS. FARRELL: Good morning,

         12  Councilwoman Robinson, Councilman Perkins and Chair,

         13  Councilwoman Marshall.

         14                 I am Judy Farrell, representing

         15  Fernando Ferrer, Borough President of the Bronx and

         16  I am also an alumnus of the CUNY system and glad

         17  that CUNY gave me an opportunity, and the Borough

         18  President appreciates the opportunity to discuss the

         19  teacher education program at CUNY.

         20                 As Borough President Ferrer has

         21  stated before, he strongly supports the need to

         22  raise standards at CUNY senior and community

         23  colleges.

         24                 Improved standards for CUNY's teacher

         25  education program are particularly important because
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          2  CUNY produces many of New York City's teachers,

          3  supplying the Board of Education with 1,200 or 40

          4  percent of new teachers in the last year.

          5                 It is important to focus our

          6  attention on improving the teacher education

          7  departments at CUNY because of its strong link to

          8  our New York City public school system.

          9                 Teacher training and preparation is

         10  the key to success, not only for teachers themselves

         11  but for their students as well. It is CUNY's

         12  responsibility to develop training programs and it

         13  is our responsibility as elected officials to

         14  provide the resources to ensure that these programs

         15  are of the highest quality.

         16                 Raising the bar for new teachers is a

         17  logical extension of earlier Regents initiatives,

         18  the urgency of restoring accountability to education

         19  cannot be overstated.

         20                 Perhaps when considering the quality

         21  of education programs on the University level, we

         22  need also to consider the quality of the students

         23  who are entering these programs.

         24                 Again, we must face reality, until we

         25  effectively raise the esteemed level of the
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          2  profession and provide more incentives, such as

          3  higher salaries, more support and professional

          4  development, smaller class sizes and more resources,

          5  as well as adequate facilities, the most qualified

          6  candidates will be dissuaded from entering the

          7  profession.

          8                 Let me highlight a few important

          9  facts for you to consider today. Last year at City

         10  College, which has City University's largest teacher

         11  ed program, only 49 percent of 1,097 teacher

         12  candidates passed their certification exam. The

         13  Statewide rate was 86 percent.

         14                 CUNY also had the worst teacher

         15  training record in the state. It is frightening

         16  considering the number of teachers CUNY turns out

         17  for the New York City public school system.

         18                 Five, CUNY colleges have been put on

         19  notice that their teacher education programs will be

         20  shut down if they do not improve their passing rate.

         21                 Of the 46 colleges where at least 100

         22  students took the Teacher Certification Exam, only

         23  five schools had a pass rate below 60 percent, and

         24  four of them are in the CUNY system.

         25                 With an average pass rate on the New
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          2  York State Teacher Certification Exam for schools of

          3  62 percent, CUNY is far below others in the state.

          4                 The average pass rate for private

          5  schools is 87 percent, and the State University pass

          6  rate is 95 percent.

          7                 Not only do CUNY students perform

          8  poorly on the sections that cover pedagogy, foreign

          9  language proficiency and the candidate's major field

         10  of study, in each year for which results are

         11  available, thousands of CUNY students failed the

         12  liberal arts and sciences portion, which tests very

         13  basic general knowledge than any college sophomore

         14  should possess.

         15                 Over the next five years, our city's

         16  public schools will need to recruit nearly 40,000

         17  teachers. This represents one of the greatest

         18  opportunities in CUNY's history to serve both the

         19  city and its graduates.

         20                 If CUNY could improve the quality and

         21  consistency of its education programs, and ensure

         22  that its education degree graduates are well

         23  prepared to be successful teachers, our children

         24  would see substantial benefits within the next few

         25  years.
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          2                 If higher standards are needed for

          3  students, they are certainly needed for the CUNY

          4  system, which produces teachers for those students.

          5  If we fail to dramatically improve these programs,

          6  we will only be perpetuating the tragic cycle of

          7  failure in New York City public schools.

          8                 To improve CUNY's system of teacher

          9  education, creative initiatives must be forged.

         10                 First, CUNY should use the resources

         11  available in New York City. Educational experts from

         12  top teacher education programs, such as Columbia's

         13  Teacher College and Bank Street College, should be

         14  brought in to evaluate the CUNY program and make

         15  recommendations for improvement.

         16                 Second, prospective teachers need

         17  more practical training, year-long internship or

         18  residency programs under the supervision of a mentor

         19  teacher, should be a required component of any

         20  teacher education program.

         21                 And lastly, talented individuals need

         22  incentives to enter the field of education. Through

         23  proper funding the CUNY system should offer

         24  scholarships and loan forgiveness options for

         25  prospective students.
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          2                 As we face the new millennium, CUNY

          3  has a unique opportunity to dramatically effect

          4  education in our City. Teachers face a multitude of

          5  challenges in the century ahead. Yet they are a

          6  vital force in improving the lives of New York City

          7  children.

          8                 In creating tomorrow's leaders, CUNY

          9  needs to elevate their education program by setting

         10  higher standards, and providing students with the

         11  support and the resources they need to be successful

         12  educators.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank

         15  you very much for your testimony, and please express

         16  our gratitude to the Borough President for having

         17  made a presentation and making us aware of some of

         18  the statistics involved in what is happening with

         19  teachers in the City of New York. Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MS. FARRELL: Thank you.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: The next

         23  persons to testify will consist of a panel of Dr.

         24  Lee Ann Truesdell, Assistant Dean of Education,

         25  Queens College. Elizabeth Ophals, I believe, Louis
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          2  Armstrong Middle School.

          3                 Good morning. I would like to welcome

          4  you to the presentations, the hearing this morning,

          5  on behalf of Council Member Marshall, our

          6  Chairperson.

          7                 You may begin your testimony. Please

          8  introduce yourselves for the record.

          9                 DR. TRUESDELL: Good morning. I am Lee

         10  Ann Truesdell, Assistant Dean at Queens College.

         11                 MS. OPHALS: I am Elizabeth Ophals. I

         12  am the principal of the Louis Armstrong Middle

         13  School, which has held a collaboration with Queens

         14  College for the past 20 years.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank

         16  you.

         17                 Please continue.

         18                 DR. TRUESDELL: I am going to speak

         19  this morning about the efficacy of teacher education

         20  at CUNY, and the activities that we have at Queens

         21  College which have a high degree of presence in the

         22  New York City schools, and some initiatives,

         23  curriculum initiatives that we have.

         24                 The question of efficacy of teacher

         25  education in CUNY is a critical issue for CUNY, the
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          2  City and the State.

          3                 At Queens College we have a very

          4  large and varied set of teacher education programs.

          5  Through these programs we are in many schools and

          6  every part of Queens and in surrounding areas, as

          7  well.

          8                 This morning I want to outline the

          9  scope of these programs and discuss briefly some

         10  particular initiatives at Queens College that

         11  enhance and enrich the experiences and education of

         12  our students, the faculty and the Queens community.

         13                 My focus will be on features of our

         14  programs that contribute to the efficacy of teacher

         15  preparation at Queens College.

         16                 The undergraduate elementary and

         17  secondary education program is built on strong

         18  liberal arts preparation. Students are admitted

         19  after demonstrating competence in writing and good

         20  academic performance.

         21                 Students enroll in pedagogy courses

         22  that provide foundation in child development and

         23  learning, curriculum and teaching.

         24                 They also engage in field experiences

         25  and student teaching at two different grade levels
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          2  in schools all over Queens and beyond.

          3                 Last year we had 480 elementary and

          4  early childhood students in 37 schools in every

          5  district in Queens, and 265 students in over 40

          6  Queens junior and senior high schools. This

          7  represents an enormous presence by Queens College in

          8  our public schools.

          9                 In addition, we have an extensive

         10  program for students at the graduate level, who are

         11  change of career folks. We provide concentrated

         12  courses and curriculum, growth and development,

         13  field work and student teaching at the graduate

         14  level, providing a foundation for students who want

         15  to continue in a master's level certification

         16  program.

         17                 And we have an extensive set of

         18  graduate programs preparing classroom teachers,

         19  special educators, school psychologists, counselors,

         20  reading specialists, and administrators.

         21                 Many of these programs have a

         22  clinical experience or practical, adding our

         23  presence in public schools.

         24                 Our graduates have been highly

         25  successful with the result that principals are very
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          2  interested in hiring our recent graduates.

          3                 While our students and faculty are in

          4  many Queens schools, there are serious drawbacks to

          5  this model of teacher education in which students

          6  spend a semester or less in a classroom in a school

          7  after student teaching placement.

          8                 Students in typical student teaching

          9  see only the one classroom and its teacher. Its

         10  programs -- in programs where students have two

         11  different placements, they see two classrooms at the

         12  most.

         13                 Supervisors observe students in many

         14  different schools. In this situation, there is

         15  little opportunity for college faculty to interact

         16  with members of the school staff.

         17                 Queens College has recognized the

         18  limitations of this model for a long time. Over the

         19  last 20 years we have worked collaboratively with

         20  the New York City school system to establish schools

         21  in Queens to create more extensive opportunities for

         22  our student teachers.

         23                 The first collaboration was with

         24  Louis Armstrong Middle School, where we have

         25  developed a strong and continued presence, since it

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            79

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  opened in 1979.

          3                 Members of the college faculty have

          4  worked over the years with teachers to design

          5  curriculum and programs and to prepare new teachers.

          6                 The school is remarkable in its

          7  openness to our students, and I might add, to

          8  visitors as well. The school serves as a site for

          9  two graduate programs in which students spend the

         10  entire year observing and teaching in classrooms

         11  throughout the building.

         12                 That is, interns participate in

         13  several classrooms over the course of the year,

         14  observing, working with small groups of children and

         15  teaching lessons in entire units.

         16                 Furthermore, interns also study the

         17  school's culture, organization and community.

         18                 I have been a faculty liaison at the

         19  Louis Armstrong Middle School for many of the 20

         20  years that I have been at Queens College. What I

         21  have seen and experienced is an extensive openness

         22  and sense of responsibility at the school for

         23  teacher education.

         24                 Teachers see their work with interns

         25  as part of their teaching. As many describe their
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          2  experiences as a mentor and learner, they report

          3  that, they are more reflective as a result of their

          4  teaching and planning with interns. I believe that

          5  to prepare teachers well, students need extensive

          6  experience in schools, integrating the ideas they

          7  are learning on campus and practicing the complex

          8  skills of teaching in different situations.

          9                 When colleges are working in

         10  collaboration with schools the learning extends in

         11  all directions and everyone benefits. The students,

         12  the student teachers learn, the cooperating teachers

         13  learn, the faculty members learn and the students

         14  benefit from the school environment where teachers

         15  are reflecting on their practice and revising their

         16  curriculum and instruction.

         17                 As you know, we also have the

         18  Townsend Harris High School on our campus. This

         19  marvelous school not only provides opportunities for

         20  student teaching, but also has established a program

         21  with Queens College for high school students to take

         22  courses on our campus. In their senior year,

         23  students are enrolled in classes for college

         24  credits.

         25                 The most recent collaboration between
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          2  Queens College and New York City public schools is

          3  brand new. Last month we opened the Queens College

          4  School for Math, Science and Technology on our

          5  campus. Given a very short time line, this was an

          6  extraordinary achievement spearheaded by President

          7  Allen Sessoms, Borough President Shulman, Chancellor

          8  Rudy Crew, UFT and members of a faculty team from

          9  across campus chaired by Susan Turkel.

         10                 The school's vision is to provide a

         11  quality education for children, to conceptualize

         12  develop and implement innovative and rigorous math

         13  and science curriculum, to create an environment for

         14  preparing pre-service teachers and a vehicle for

         15  working with elementary schools throughout the

         16  Borough. The school was established with the idea

         17  that college faculty and students will work

         18  collaboratively with teachers and parents in

         19  creating a rich learning environment for children

         20  and college students.

         21                 A fourth collaboration was developed

         22  about seven years ago between Queens College and PS

         23  51, an early childhood school in District 27. In

         24  this school, a Committee of classroom teachers

         25  conceptualize and plan the student teaching
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          2  activities with Queens College faculty.

          3                 Dr. Sidney Schwartz, who spearheaded

          4  this collaboration, also developed a collaborative

          5  arrangement with District 27 to create and offer a

          6  course for new early childhood teachers.

          7                 This collaboration involves the

          8  district, principals, college faculty, school staff

          9  developers and the mentors assigned to new teachers.

         10                 Planning and implementing the new

         11  teacher course is a joint effort of the college and

         12  the district. This program served 35 to 50 teachers

         13  each year.

         14                 The beauty of this collaboration is

         15  the coherence it offers new teachers, because the

         16  mentors and teachers are attending the course

         17  together where they experience and share the same

         18  information of curriculum and classroom strategy.

         19                 Queens College has several important

         20  curriculum initiatives as well. Among these is the

         21  CUNY Literacy Enhancement Project directed by Dr.

         22  Schwartz from Queens College in collaboration with

         23  Wynne Shilling from York College with support from

         24  80th Street and funded by the New York City Board of

         25  Education.
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          2                 This project implements a literacy

          3  curriculum for grades one through three and provides

          4  extensive teacher training in nine community school

          5  districts.

          6                 It involves over 500 teachers every

          7  year and affects 15,000 children. After several

          8  years of implementation, data indicate that this

          9  program is effective and it continues to be

         10  supported by the New York City Board of Education.

         11                 With the tremendous growth of

         12  information, curriculum in schools becomes one of

         13  selection and focus, of learning concepts as well as

         14  skills, and of learning how to explore and

         15  investigate ideas rather than memorize them.

         16                 Two large curriculum projects on

         17  Queens College campus represents efforts at the

         18  college to conceptualize curriculum and teaching for

         19  pre-service teachers.

         20                 Drs. Alice Artz and Eleanor

         21  Armour-Thomas worked with faculty in the math

         22  department to design a series of courses that wed

         23  the mathematics curriculum for undergraduate

         24  mathematics majors studying to be teachers with the

         25  pedagogy of mathematic teaching.
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          2                 This project involves the math

          3  educator and members of the math department in

          4  planning and shaping math courses for prospective

          5  math teachers. They created a sequence of math and

          6  education courses that prepare students for

          7  mathematics teaching from their freshman year

          8  instead of waiting until the last three semesters of

          9  college.

         10                 A second curriculum initiative is

         11  Project Master Teacher, directed by Dr. John Craven.

         12  The program unites science educators, environmental

         13  researchers, faculty in the School of Earth and

         14  Environmental Science, math, science and technology

         15  teachers at the Louis Armstrong Middle School and

         16  pre-service teachers in conducting environmental

         17  research.

         18                 The pre-service teachers then take

         19  their research and adapt it for middle school

         20  science curriculum.

         21                 Finally, they teach lessons based on

         22  this adaptive curriculum. In this process, science

         23  and pedagogy are united by the pre-service science

         24  teacher in field experiences involving research and

         25  teaching.
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          2                 And finally, issues of multi-cultural

          3  education have been the focus of three projects in

          4  school psychology and special education. Dr. Emilia

          5  Lopez initiated a bilingual and multi-cultural

          6  curriculum strand within the School Psychology

          7  Program that expanded the experiences and

          8  understandings of students about cultural and

          9  linguistic difference and how these differences may

         10  affect learning and school experience.

         11                 She recently joined with Brooklyn

         12  College to establish a Center for Bilingual School

         13  Psychology to disseminate information about the

         14  bilingualism and multi-culturalism to school

         15  psychology programs throughout New York State.

         16                 Using some of her ideas, I developed

         17  the Inclusion and Multi-cultural Special Education

         18  Program that prepares special educators to work

         19  collaboratively with general educators to teach

         20  students with disabilities in general education

         21  culturally diverse classrooms.

         22                 In this program graduate students

         23  participate in a year-long internship at the Louis

         24  Armstrong Middle School and PS 150.

         25                 Keeping in mind the new regulations
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          2  for Teacher Certification just passed by the New

          3  York State Regents, the initiatives described here

          4  make excellent models for the innovations the

          5  Regents seek in teacher education.

          6                 We look forward to expanding campus

          7  collaborations and the development of more

          8  collaborative relationships in Queens so that our

          9  field experiences and student teacher models will be

         10  created jointly with classroom teachers and

         11  pre-service teachers will have substantial classroom

         12  and school-wide experiences.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank

         14  you very much, Dr. Truesdell. It appears that you

         15  have an outstanding collaboration going on with the

         16  Louis Armstrong Middle School and of course the

         17  program itself sounds very exciting. I don't want to

         18  just limit it to Queens, I think the program you

         19  describe seems to be a program that should be

         20  expanded throughout all of the boroughs so that all

         21  of our children would have an opportunity to take

         22  advantage of a program such as it has been

         23  described.

         24                 Ms. Ophals, would you tell me what

         25  has been the benefit of the Louis Armstrong Middle
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          2  School as a result of, and what do you attribute to

          3  the success of this program, or has it been

          4  successful in your school? So, tell me about that

          5  experience.

          6                 MS. OPHALS: Thank you, Council Member

          7  Robinson, and thank you very much for inviting me

          8  here today, because I am a practitioner in the field

          9  today.

         10                 I was astounded when Assemblyman

         11  Sullivan said in 2004 we are going to need teachers.

         12  We have 13 new staff members in our building as of

         13  this past September, out of 100, and if any of you

         14  know anyone who would like to teach sixth grade

         15  science, I have a position still available. I can't

         16  urge on you enough the importance of teacher

         17  education.

         18                 I am in the catbird seat because one

         19  of my colleagues in Brooklyn had 23 new staff

         20  members. Our population has grown from 1,200

         21  students to 1,600 students in five years, and we are

         22  undercrowded compared to a local elementary school

         23  that has 1,900 students where classes are held in

         24  the vestibule of the school. We really need

         25  teachers, and we need well-trained teachers.
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          2                 Someone recently told me a story

          3  about the teachers now who come with the new Board

          4  of Ed feather test, where a feather is held under

          5  the nose, if it moves, you get a job, you get a

          6  license, or at least an occasional per diem

          7  certificate.

          8                 It is very disturbing, and perhaps

          9  those of you who are in the field know that people

         10  are coming to us with no education background. Four

         11  of the 11 new staff members whom I hired in

         12  September had no student teaching whatsoever and

         13  very few education courses.

         14                 We will train them in our building,

         15  because of our collaboration with the college.

         16                 For the last 20 years Queens College

         17  has had of course student teachers in our building,

         18  but the jewel in their crown is the intern program.

         19  And that is where adults who are returning, how are

         20  coming to teaching after being often cooks or

         21  copywriters or any number of different professions,

         22  have decided to become teachers. Sometimes they are

         23  new graduate students, but more often than not they

         24  are adults.

         25                 They spend a year in our building.
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          2  They are there for opening day, they are there for

          3  professional development of all teachers. They are

          4  not limited to one teacher for one period a day.

          5  They visit the entire school, they become immeshed

          6  in the culture of the school. They are part of our

          7  school. They students work with them just as easily

          8  as they work with their teachers.

          9                 I have been at Louis Armstrong for 18

         10  years and I can remember a time in my career when as

         11  a teacher I had four other adults in the room with

         12  me, three interns and a student teacher. I don't

         13  have to tell you how that benefits the 32 children

         14  in my room. Because each child has greater access to

         15  a caring, enthusiastic educated adult.

         16                 We have a number of initiatives from

         17  the college that put the interns in our building.

         18  Dr. Truesdell's program has made an entry into our

         19  building. About 17 percent of our students receive

         20  instructional support special education services.

         21  And Dr. Truesdell's program, how many interns do you

         22  have right now?

         23                 DR. TRUESDELL: I have about nine in

         24  the building right now.

         25                 MS. OPHALS: We have nine right now,
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          2  but we have had more in the past. Nine interns who

          3  work with those classes and also with the general

          4  educators who work with them.

          5                 We also have working with us Just

          6  Begun next year, these programs that I just

          7  described are for graduate students, and the student

          8  teaching programs are for undergraduates. But last

          9  year, Dr. Craven, the Professor of Science Education

         10  at Queens College, began a very innovative program

         11  where right from the very beginning of the education

         12  courses of college students, the classes take place

         13  in a school. From the very, very beginning the class

         14  is one morning a week, meet first with Dr. Craven,

         15  then with the science teachers in our building and

         16  then back with Dr. Craven.

         17                 This semester they will be visiting a

         18  few more times, but beginning next spring they are

         19  experiencing -- now, these students are probably,

         20  maybe juniors, maybe sophomores, definitely not

         21  seniors, so they are starting early in college.

         22                 These students will be in our

         23  building with our students with our teachers right

         24  from the very beginning. Right from the beginning of

         25  their career. So that when they do get their
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          2  licenses, they will have had experiences with

          3  children, experiences with school culture,

          4  experiences with dealing with other adults in the

          5  building, which can be very important in a collegial

          6  sense, and hopefully stay in the field of science

          7  education. Again, I am looking for a science

          8  teacher. I can hardly wait for Dr. Craven to finish

          9  with his cohort.

         10                 One of the concerns that I have is

         11  something that President Caputo mentioned, that he

         12  said that if the City University -- Hunter College,

         13  the staff, a full-time teacher, college professors

         14  in education went from 72 to 52. I know that Queens

         15  College has experienced a similar cut, and this very

         16  successful internship program, and those of you who

         17  are on the field can recognize what a good number

         18  this is, 70 percent -- last year we had to conduct a

         19  study, 70 percent of the interns in the Queens

         20  College program remained in teaching. That is an

         21  outstanding number, outstanding. Sometimes they are

         22  teaching in museums, but more often than not they

         23  are teaching our children in our schools.

         24                 Because of the cuts with the Board of

         25  Education, the program, the collaboration between
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          2  Queens College and our school, which now I am

          3  reminding you has a 70 percent retention rate of

          4  teachers. At one time we had 24 interns, last year I

          5  believe we had six, this year we have a few more 12.

          6  I am appealing to you as a City Council Member that

          7  is not enough.

          8                 What Assemblyman Sullivan said, 2004

          9  -- 2000. We desperately need well-trained teachers,

         10  the City Council needs to support excellent

         11  programs, and as you said, Council Member Robinson,

         12  to spread that type of successful program not only

         13  in Queens with our school, but into the other

         14  boroughs as well.

         15                 I thank you very much for giving me

         16  this opportunity to address the Council and my

         17  colleagues.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank

         19  you very much for sharing with us.

         20                 And I want to say this, of course,

         21  that you should be aware in this last budget, how

         22  ferociously that the City Council fought to include

         23  additional dollars in the budget for the City

         24  University system, also to assist the Board of

         25  Education in the development of teacher centers, and
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          2  putting in incentives for people going to school, et

          3  cetera, et cetera, only to, of course, you know, the

          4  other side of the hall doesn't always agree with the

          5  initiatives that we put forth.

          6                 But one of the things I would like to

          7  say, since I have you here: You know, the world of

          8  academia has a tendency to be very quiet about its

          9  needs at times, and since people do not speak out

         10  and speak up, sometimes people take, just push you

         11  to the side and say, you know, well we can take from

         12  here and take from there, as a result from taking

         13  from here and there, when there was a retrenchment

         14  in education back in the seventies, we lost out, and

         15  tremendously lost out specifically in the areas of

         16  -- and I always talk about music and art, music and

         17  art was crucial to the civility of the quality of

         18  life within the City of New York, and for that to

         19  have been taken out of the curriculum and then it

         20  went from the music and art and then it went to the

         21  sports programs and then it just went down and down

         22  and down, and now we find ourselves, we can't find

         23  anyone to teach or the people that come in to teach

         24  don't have the necessary credentials to teach, and

         25  so therefore you have big business saying now we
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          2  have to put money into education so that we make

          3  sure that we have some kind of outcome that we can

          4  work with.

          5                 Well, certainly you can count on us

          6  in the City Council. We are only here to 2001, this

          7  class. There is another class that will be coming

          8  in. So, I would say to all of you in academia, make

          9  the best of it and make sure that your voices are

         10  heard so that our children will be educated for the

         11  next millennium. Thank you very much.

         12                 MS. OPHALS: Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: The next

         14  person to speak would be Professor Sandi Cooper,

         15  University Faculty Senate.

         16                 PROFESSOR COOPER: It is good

         17  afternoon at this moment.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Oh,

         19  thank you so much. Okay.

         20                 PROFESSOR COOPER: Thank you for

         21  presiding over these hearings and thank you for

         22  holding them, and I am grateful for the opportunity

         23  to appear here again, and I promise to send a

         24  written statement in. I just wasn't able to get it

         25  ready this morning.
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          2                 I am the former Chairperson of the

          3  University Faculty Senate, I served as chair from

          4  1994 to 1998, and I am a Professor of History in the

          5  City University of the College of Staten Island and

          6  the graduate school, having come to CUNY in 1967 and

          7  having started teaching history in 1969, so I am

          8  about to enter my 40th year as a historian.

          9                 I will address the issue of teacher

         10  education from two perspectives, from, one, the

         11  social, and particularly the societal needs of New

         12  York City; and secondly, the intellectual and

         13  professional needs of the career of teacher.

         14                 About two and a half years ago when I

         15  was chairing the Faculty Senate, I organized a panel

         16  to address the issue of teacher education because it

         17  had become clear to a few of us, from a statement by

         18  one of the Regents, that this was going to become a

         19  priority in the State of New York, as it had not

         20  been for many decades.

         21                 The regent who came to speak to a

         22  Board of Trustees meeting I believe about three

         23  years ago indicated it was their intention to shut

         24  down teacher training programs that failed to meet

         25  certain criteria, which would have essentially
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          2  impacted about half, perhaps a little less than half

          3  of the teacher education programs in CUNY very

          4  negatively.

          5                 And the Faculty Senate at that point,

          6  which represents the faculty from the six community

          7  colleges, the 11 senior colleges, the graduate

          8  school and the law school, decided that this issue

          9  had to become a priority for us. It was clearly in

         10  the heart of the mission of what we were doing.

         11                 At the panels we organize we were

         12  told that by the Year 2004, New York City would need

         13  somewhere between 21,000 and 28,000 new teachers and

         14  this would have to be achieved with much higher

         15  standards of preparation.

         16                 Yesterday the New York Times

         17  indicates that estimate has been revised, it is now

         18  41,000, if this estimate is accurate, and that to me

         19  is an overwhelming challenge, which I am not

         20  terribly sure any of us can be geared up to deal

         21  with.

         22                 The necessity also will be to train

         23  teachers who can deal with the needs of the kind of

         24  students we have, which is considerably different

         25  from students in the suburbs, and if we don't start
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          2  off by an honest facing of that fact, I think we

          3  will be wasting our time.

          4                 We know how to acquire high quality

          5  educated people to teach in the schools, it is no

          6  state secret.

          7                 One of the things we have done in

          8  some of our programs to improve the graduates is to

          9  raise the grade point average for admission to

         10  teacher education, and another is to emphasize the

         11  liberal arts education, particularly for those who

         12  plan to teach from fifth grade through high school.

         13  Early childhood and the younger years might need a

         14  different kind of preparation. And the focus on

         15  improving the liberal arts and the skills that go

         16  with them, such as writing are essential if we

         17  expect our students to pass the LSATs, the State

         18  Liberal Arts Test.

         19                 I understand from figures that I have

         20  been told by the University is that if you measure

         21  the performance of the graduates of our program whom

         22  we certify as teachers on that state test, our

         23  numbers have risen to the high eighties and low

         24  nineties. And so the PR that has been in the

         25  tabloids attacking CUNY for having the lowest pass
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          2  rates on the test, is inaccurate and I think it is

          3  just part of a generic campaign to realize the

          4  successes of the University.

          5                 If you count in the numbers of

          6  students who have taken the test, everybody who

          7  claims they have been at CUNY, the pass rate is

          8  lower, but those claims come from people who may

          9  have registered for one CUNY course and not

         10  matriculated.

         11                 Again, if we measure the pass rate on

         12  the exam of students who have taken a CUNY program,

         13  a preparation program, and who have been certified

         14  by their faculty to take that exam, I think our pass

         15  rate is somewhere between 88 and 91 percent which is

         16  as high as the state average, is for SUNY and the

         17  private.

         18                 So, I don't think we have much to be

         19  afraid of, the problem is going to be numbers,

         20  41,000 people is a lot of people.

         21                 Last winter I had an education that

         22  really was an eye opener on this whole issue when I

         23  was in Albany for the Black and Puerto Rican Caucus

         24  Weekend, at a workshop in education. There was a

         25  presentation given by the campaign for fiscal
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          2  equity, which I believe is about to go into court

          3  next week and sue the State of New York.

          4                 At that presentation, the drastic

          5  inequity in New York City, vis-a-vis three other

          6  categories of population in the state were

          7  illustrated beyond doubt. The three other categories

          8  were other urban areas, suburban areas and rural

          9  areas.

         10                 The per capita spending on children

         11  in New York City, even compared to Upstate rural

         12  areas was on the average of 1,200 less per child.

         13                 The size of class in New York City is

         14  on the average of 20 percent higher than almost any

         15  other system, including Rochester, Syracuse,

         16  Buffalo, which are the other large urban areas

         17  upstate.

         18                 The average salary, starting salary

         19  for a new teacher was on the average of $10,000

         20  lower in New York City than it is in any other

         21  county within the Metropolitan area, and my

         22  students, and I educate at the College of Staten

         23  Island, I do a great many liberal arts courses for

         24  undergraduates who are going to be teachers, and I

         25  also teach in the master's program, the liberal arts
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          2  courses for teachers in social studies, any one of

          3  them at any moment can drive across the Gothels

          4  Bridge into New Jersey, and that is very easy to do

          5  from Staten Island, and increase her salary by

          6  $12,000, even in a City like Elizabeth, New Jersey.

          7                 The average pension, salary for

          8  pension, when you retire at the end of 25 or 30

          9  years, in the counties around New York City,

         10  according to the campaign for fiscal equity, was

         11  something like $15,000 to $20,000 higher than a New

         12  York City teacher would have after 30 or 35 years.

         13                 You don't have to be a rocket

         14  scientist to figure out the social implications of

         15  this profile and add to it the fact that 41,000

         16  people are going to be needed, and then on top of

         17  that, the fact that the Regents are not going to

         18  certify programs that don't turn out good people,

         19  which I fully agree with, I am not trying to put

         20  warm bodies in front of children so we can replicate

         21  another generation of badly educated kids, and

         22  increase our remediation budget. I mean, this cycle

         23  has to be broken, but I think we have to start with

         24  reality, as a historian that is the training I have

         25  had. Social reality. And the reality is that we are
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          2  dealing with almost an intractable problem, unless

          3  we can break through this problem of inequities.

          4                 Even in New York City, in some

          5  schools where the parents association is an active

          6  group, the funding for the school is totally

          7  different than the neighborhood could be two miles

          8  away. I see this on Staten Island. There are schools

          9  where the PTA has put computers in, has enriched the

         10  library, has hired librarians themselves and pays

         11  temporary people, has brought in audio visual

         12  equipment, and there are schools, of course, which

         13  are using recycled books that are 30 and 40 years

         14  old, and that is in the same system and I am sure we

         15  all know which is which.

         16                 So that the whole problem of dealing

         17  with the kind of social issue and economic issue

         18  enrolled in this career has got to be faced,

         19  otherwise we are just spinning wheels.

         20                 I have been listening to this

         21  conversation now for about 40 years and I am not

         22  optimistic that people are going to demonstrate the

         23  will to break out of it.

         24                 Everybody has been talking about ways

         25  to find the teachers for this teaching pool that is
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          2  going to be needed. Obviously we are going to have

          3  to try and encourage some people to keep the

          4  retirees to stay on a bit longer, and obviously we

          5  are going to have to try and retrain people from

          6  other careers who discover that working on Wall

          7  Street is not what it is cracked up to be.

          8                 But one possible area that might be

          9  tapped for classroom teachers, and I don't know if

         10  this will work, it would require making some legal

         11  changes in preparation of teachers, is we have a

         12  substantial number of doctoral candidates in the

         13  liberal arts who will not end up teaching in college

         14  because the supply of those people is much greater

         15  than the number of college positions that so far are

         16  appearing.

         17                 And it seems to me that somebody who

         18  is an A B D in English or history or chemistry or

         19  math, and who is having a lot of trouble putting

         20  together a package to live on by teaching as an

         21  adjunct in two or three colleges, might be an area,

         22  and we have a significant number of them in the

         23  metropolitan area, might be a population that could

         24  be approached. They don't have the education

         25  courses, they don't have the psychological
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          2  development of children courses, they usually have

          3  very in-depth education in a discipline, but it

          4  seems to me that they are people who demonstrated

          5  intellectual ability if they have gotten into Ph.D

          6  programs and that they may well be, at least a

          7  percentage of them, intracted into high school and

          8  junior high school teaching. As I say, I think lower

          9  school is another problem all together.

         10                 In addition to paying competitive

         11  salaries and to restricting classes to manageable

         12  sizes, and trying to keep young teachers from

         13  leaving the profession, about half of the people

         14  that have gone through our program in Staten Island

         15  quit in five years because they find the burnout is

         16  too much.

         17                 The notion of giving people support

         18  in the classroom seems to be crucial. From the very

         19  get-go, three and four years and up, the younger

         20  teachers last better if they have classroom support

         21  with them.

         22                 Finally, I would just say that one of

         23  the things that we do on Staten Island as best as we

         24  can with an extremely limited faculty, the size of

         25  our campus is about the same size as some of the
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          2  older senior colleges, but the full-time faculty

          3  cohort is 25 to 30 percent smaller so we are

          4  stretched even further.

          5                 We also have the smallest

          6  administration in CUNY, or one of the two smallest.

          7  But even with this extraordinarily exhausting kind

          8  of thing, and it means depending on a lot of

          9  adjuncts.

         10                 One of the things we have tried to do

         11  is work at programs for retraining in-service

         12  teachers, so we have, and I am involved in this and

         13  have been on and off over the years, except for when

         14  I was chairing the senate, we have done, for

         15  example, a great deal to introduce global and

         16  international perspectives in the social studies

         17  education, because that has become an absolute

         18  requirement these days, and to introduce things like

         19  immigration history, in addition to the

         20  African-American and the women's history and all of

         21  the other things we did 20 and 30 years ago. We have

         22  tried to globalize the curriculum and the new

         23  master's and history that we just got through the

         24  Board of Trustees is entirely international. There

         25  are people teaching the background of every
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          2  continent. It is our hope that this will attract

          3  this new cohort of social studies teachers and give

          4  them grounding to go forth in their own classrooms,

          5  so that they don't have to come back for retraining.

          6                 We also do retraining for people who

          7  want it, and we run a center on the campus for

          8  teachers, in-service teachers, to come and get

          9  materials, borrow videos, come to workshops. Some of

         10  that is, the math and science piece of that is

         11  supported by millions of dollars of federal funds

         12  that a colleague of mine has gotten.

         13                 So, the campus is very well

         14  integrated with the Borough's school system and has

         15  been for about 20 some years.  There is now talk of

         16  opening a campus school, because there is space on

         17  this campus to do that, 204 acreas, it is the

         18  largest campus in CUNY. But I don't think that any

         19  of these wonderful initiatives is going to deal with

         20  the possibilities of a lacuna of 41,000 people,

         21  unless we do something very creatively about making

         22  this profession as attractive as college teaching

         23  is, to intellectually gifted and talented

         24  undergraduates.

         25                 I thank you for listening and I
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          2  appreciate the opportunity to appear here.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank

          4  you very much for the benefit of your experience, of

          5  course, and your almost 40 years of being in the

          6  profession and for sharing with us, and I think

          7  perhaps others have benefitted from your experience

          8  as well, in listening to your dissertation regarding

          9  how we are going to make it into the next millennium

         10  as we attempt to provide teachers for our young

         11  people. Thank you so very much.

         12                 MS. COOPER: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you,

         14  Councilwoman Robinson.

         15                 Our next witness is Dr. Sharon

         16  Simmons, the Chair of the Education Department at

         17  Medgar Evers College. The students we hope will

         18  accompany you. Deborah Hoyle, Janice Wright, and

         19  Veronica Williams-Lyle.

         20                 DR. SIMMONS: Good afternoon,

         21  Chairperson Marshall and City Councilwoman Robinson.

         22                 My name is Sharon Simmons and I am

         23  the Chair of the Education Department at Medgar

         24  Evers College. Allow me to take this opportunity to

         25  thank you for your invitation to testify. I am

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            107

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  joined by two of our recent graduates who are

          3  currently teaching in Brooklyn and one student who

          4  is in the last stage of her pre-professional

          5  training.

          6                 My remarks will address how Medgar

          7  Evers College has redefined, reshaped and

          8  implemented teacher preparation programs to address

          9  the mandates of the New York State Education

         10  Department, the Board of Regents and the needs of

         11  Urban School Districts.

         12                 Medgar Evers College was established

         13  in 1969 as a result of collaborative efforts by

         14  community leaders and advocates elected officials,

         15  the Chancellor of the Board of Trustees of the City

         16  University of New York.

         17                 The college was formed with the

         18  mandate to meet the educational and social needs of

         19  Central Brooklyn.

         20                 The philosophy of the City University

         21  of New York and Medgar Evers College is grounded in

         22  the belief that education has the power to

         23  positively transform the lives of individuals and

         24  that access to education is the right of all

         25  individuals in the pursuit of their
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          2  self-actualization.

          3                 At Medgar Evers our motto is"creating

          4  success, one student at a time."

          5                 It is important to note that Medgar

          6  Evers College students may not fit the profile of a

          7  traditional college student. Most of our students

          8  are females. They are full-time students who are

          9  also head of households and work full-time to

         10  support their families.

         11                 The students who enter the college

         12  for the first time this fall are typical of the

         13  kinds of students we serve: Seventy-one percent

         14  female, eight percent from foreign countries, 28

         15  percent from high schools in Brooklyn, 25 percent

         16  with a GED, seven percent with high school averages

         17  of 80 or above, 62 percent with high school averages

         18  between 70 and 80 and 30 percent with high school

         19  averages below 70.

         20                 The aim of teacher education at

         21  Medgar Evers College is to produce teacher scholars

         22  who demonstrate the ability to:

         23                 - apply the knowledge and skills

         24  needed to be effective, standard focus practitioners

         25  who will inspire and challenge all students to
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          2  excel.

          3                 - implement multiple teaching and

          4  learning strategies that are based upon broad

          5  knowledge of arts and sciences, critical

          6  understanding of education theory and reflective

          7  practices.

          8                 - use state-of-the-art learning

          9  technology in ways that also foster the use of these

         10  tools by students.

         11                 - create a safe teaching learning

         12  environment in which student can explore new worlds

         13  of knowledge through critical and creative thinking.

         14                 - participate in learning communities

         15  that promote parental involvement, foster active

         16  discourse and collaboration with others in the

         17  school setting and community for the benefit of

         18  students.

         19                 - communicate effectively with

         20  students, parent, caregivers and colleagues with

         21  diverse characteristics and background and varying

         22  abilities and disabilities.

         23                 - make curricular content and

         24  instruction relevant to students who share

         25  membership in a multi-cultural society.
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          2                 - investigate his and her own values

          3  and beliefs and be equitable and fair in his and her

          4  attitudes and behaviors.

          5                 During the summer of 1997, the

          6  Education Department faculty developed action plans

          7  for teacher education and improvement and

          8  evaluation. The action plan has guided the

          9  development, implementation and evaluation of

         10  ongoing strategies to improve the colleges

         11  pre-service program in teacher education.

         12                 Over the past two years we have made

         13  substantial changes to improve our teacher education

         14  program. These efforts have enhanced college-wide

         15  awareness and involvement in the development of a

         16  holistic model of teacher preparation that emphasize

         17  the shares responsibilities. Our goal is an

         18  integrated learning community network to serve as a

         19  conceptual and functional vehicle for a seamless K

         20  to 16 teacher education.

         21                 We have incorporated the New York

         22  State Regents standards for teaching and learning

         23  into our existing curricula and developing learning

         24  community partnerships with District 13 and 17, as

         25  well as the middle college high school at Medgar
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          2  Evers College.

          3                 Our learning community partners also

          4  include the Brooklyn Museum of Art, the Brooklyn

          5  Academy of Music, the Brooklyn Botanical Gardens and

          6  Consolidated Edison.

          7                 Internal collaborations have been

          8  developed with the Liberal Arts and Science

          9  Department at Medgar Evers College to expand the

         10  curriculum, introduce innovative teaching strategies

         11  and seek external funding.

         12                 Partnerships such as these are the

         13  building blocks of learning communities that will

         14  improve both the preparation of pre-service teachers

         15  at Medgar Evers College, as well as the continuing

         16  preparation of in-service teachers within our

         17  partner schools.

         18                 We have established field-based

         19  professional studies courses so that students

         20  interact with school settings throughout our teacher

         21  preparation program. These field experiences enable

         22  them to observe master teachers, work at tutors,

         23  assist parents and become involved in the activities

         24  of a school.

         25                 In addition, many of our students
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          2  have participated in our summer institute in London

          3  where they were student teachers in several British

          4  primary schools.

          5                 Our student interns also include

          6  paraprofessionals who are working in schools

          7  throughout the five boroughs.

          8                 These changes we have made are

          9  consistent with the Medgar Evers mission of creating

         10  success one student at a time, as well as the

         11  recently adopted Commissioners Regulations for a

         12  curricular in teacher education.

         13                 Our teacher/scholars are able to

         14  effectively facilitate learning while engaging in

         15  continuing education and professional development as

         16  lifelong learners. They are working in schools

         17  throughout the City.

         18                 Information-age economies

         19  increasingly demand that they possess not only

         20  fundamental reading and math skills but

         21  adaptability, facility with problem-solving,

         22  technological literacy and strong communication

         23  skills.

         24                 Our graduates understand teaching as

         25  a commitment to the future.
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          2                 Moreover, they demonstrate competency

          3  and working with the culturally and linguistic

          4  diverse populations that characterize many of our

          5  urban schools.

          6                 Medgar Evers College graduates are

          7  working in schools as assistant principals, guidance

          8  counselors, grade leaders, teachers and in district

          9  offices as coordinators of district-wide programs.

         10                 They have made presentations at

         11  national and local conferences. We are proud of our

         12  graduates that we have produced and look forward to

         13  continuing our charge of developing competent and

         14  caring teachers.

         15                 And I would just like for you to hear

         16  from our students. Two of them have been to London

         17  studying education there, and one of them has made a

         18  presentation at a national conference, and we had no

         19  difficulty when we called the schools to see if our

         20  two students who were teaching to be released,

         21  because they are so proud of them and they are

         22  continuously asking us to send them more students.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We would be

         24  delighted to hear from them. We always try to

         25  include students because they are very real. These
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          2  are our constituents, all of us are here for them.

          3  Thank you.

          4                 MS. HOYLE: I do have something that I

          5  did prepare while I was here, so I am going to

          6  respond to what Dr. Simmons said also.

          7                 But good afternoon, Madam Chair and

          8  to all of the members of the Education Committee for

          9  Higher Education.

         10                 My name is Deborah Hoyle and I am a

         11  recent graduate of Medgar Evers College of the City

         12  University of New York. My commencement ceremonies

         13  were June 5th of this year.

         14                 I am also a new teacher and a

         15  constituent of the 31st district of Queens, which is

         16  represented by City Council Member, Honorable

         17  Juanita Watkins.

         18                 Are Teacher Education Programs at

         19  CUNY effective? In my opinion, yes, they are very

         20  effective. The opportunities to participate in its

         21  programs are definitely comparable to those of top

         22  universities in New York, throughout the US and

         23  abroad.

         24                 Yes, because the Teacher Education

         25  Programs offer many resources, internship
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          2  opportunities and mentoring experiences. In

          3  addition, CUNY also sponsors a number of

          4  collaborative efforts between public and private

          5  companies.

          6                 As a student at Medgar Evers, I have

          7  both voluntarily and at times sacrificed to

          8  painstakingly participate in many programs sponsored

          9  by CUNY through Medgar Evers College.

         10                 When I compare my educational

         11  experiences, I have met with students, as Dr.

         12  Simmons mentioned, I was able to participate in a

         13  London teaching experience at the University of

         14  Education in London and it was a very exciting

         15  experience for me and it helped me to redefine what

         16  my purpose was as far as becoming a teacher.

         17                 We have the opportunity to dorm with

         18  two other universities from New York, being Hofstra

         19  University and Adelphi, so I was able to sit -- I

         20  was on the third and fourth floor which is where

         21  they dormed, and we dormed on the second and the

         22  first, and I met with them very often and compared

         23  notes.

         24                 Our programs are very similar. In

         25  fact, they complained that our professors gave us
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          2  too much work, so they were able to kind of see the

          3  sights a little bit more than we did because we had

          4  a thematic unit that we had to complete while we

          5  were there also.

          6                 So, we were able to compare with our

          7  reading programs were like, our teacher reading

          8  programs were like, our methodology programs, and we

          9  were just able to jive at that point because

         10  everything I was learning they were learning, and we

         11  just had a lot of fun, and our programs are very

         12  similar, so as far as teacher education goes, I

         13  think that CUNY is right up there with the other

         14  universities.

         15                 My practicum (sic) at Medgar Evers

         16  College prepared me to emphasize on inclusion. I am

         17  a new teacher in a public school in the district in

         18  which I live and work, and I am able to use the

         19  experiences from my teaching practicum (sic) in a

         20  real life setting now. So, it is good when you can

         21  take theory to practice and actually use it without

         22  being confused. I don't have to ask anyone in my

         23  school for help. The resources are there but I can

         24  also call the University and speak to my professors

         25  and I can come back and I am welcomed and everyone
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          2  is happy to see me and it is a very nurturing

          3  environment. So I have been able to take that

          4  environment from Medgar Evers into the classroom and

          5  actually use it. It is not just a textbook getting

          6  dusty. In fact, a couple of my textbooks are in my

          7  classroom because I need to refer to them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Can you

          9  summarize. We are really picking up great vibes.

         10                 MS. HOYLE: I did have a problem with

         11  listening to some of the speakers, and I did want to

         12  address that.

         13                 That is, I do believe that one of the

         14  problems that we have as far as the teacher

         15  education program is there is no linkage for pulling

         16  the parents, and we are not taught as teachers how

         17  to really link the home environment to school. And

         18  education cannot come to the classroom and end in

         19  the classroom. There has to be more of a linkage to

         20  how we can pull the home environment into the

         21  classroom.

         22                 I have only been teaching for a

         23  month, but I have been able to visit five parents

         24  outside of the open house that we have had. I have

         25  gone to their homes. Because I think that linkage is
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          2  important, and these are troubled students that

          3  other teachers have had and I am having progress

          4  with them and I think it is because of the linkage

          5  of going into the home.

          6                 I also have a problem with what I

          7  call math and science majors crossing over. I am

          8  concerned that while the prospective teachers are

          9  sought, that an unlikely compromise may arise in

         10  that as the teachers job package becomes more

         11  attractive, some people may find it more feasible to

         12  bypass some of the, enriching teaching experiences

         13  of the teachers education practicum in mentoring

         14  opportunities.

         15                 I find that if we have science majors

         16  and math majors, we are offering them lucrative

         17  packages to become teachers, they still have to do

         18  the 36 credits or the 24 credits to become a

         19  teacher. They still have to do the licensing exam,

         20  and when you have top teachers and qualified

         21  teachers who all have already done that, it would

         22  seem pennywise but pound foolish to offer these type

         23  of incentive opportunities to people who will still

         24  have to go an extra mile to become teachers, where I

         25  am one of the students that graduated at the top of
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          2  my class, and it is very hard to find a program that

          3  is going to pay for a master's.

          4                 So, thank you for listening to my

          5  comments, I am going to let someone else speak now.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you very,

          7  very much.

          8                 You might have to switch seats with

          9  the last speaker.

         10                 MS. WRIGHT: Good morning, Chairwoman

         11  Marshall, and members of the City Council Higher

         12  Education Committee. My name is Janice Wright, and I

         13  am a 1998 graduate from Medgar Evers College who

         14  majored in Education.

         15                 I am kind of different in the sense

         16  that I migrate from Jamaica, so I am also --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: You are not

         18  very different from most of our CUNY students.

         19                 MS. WRIGHT: Right.

         20                 I would just like to say, before

         21  completion of my course of study at Medgar Evers

         22  College, I had passed both parts of the New York

         23  State Teachers Education test and upon completion I

         24  was licensed in both areas. I had dual certification

         25  in general and special education.
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          2                 Currently I am a special education

          3  teacher in district 17, the same school that I did

          4  my student teaching in.

          5                 The Medgar Evers College helped me

          6  tremendously in preparing me for life in the

          7  classroom.

          8                 The professors and paras provided me

          9  with the skills and the background to provide the

         10  basic tools needed to make intelligent decisions

         11  about planning, implementing and accessing for

         12  success in the classroom.

         13                 During my four years at Medgar Evers

         14  College, I had a defined course of study, knowing

         15  exactly what I was going to do, and when I was going

         16  to get it done.

         17                 Also, for support I had a mentor who

         18  made me reflect on my role as a tentative teacher

         19  resulting in clear expectations.

         20                 For example, I had to identify areas

         21  that influence the act of teaching. This persuades

         22  in which teachers serve as decision-makers, the

         23  importance of reflection in each and to identify the

         24  components of teaching.

         25                 I was also taught to make linkages
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          2  and connections by taking the theories that I was

          3  taught in the classroom in college and bringing it

          4  into the classroom. I was taught to use this theory

          5  in a practical situation.

          6                 Making connection was at first

          7  difficult for me because I had had no prior

          8  experience in the public school system, since I

          9  migrate from Jamaica I came here and I had no

         10  experience in a public school system, so it was kind

         11  of difficult. But it became easier during my two

         12  years of practicum, because I had to do two years in

         13  teacher training in the classroom during the

         14  practicum. So, it became easier, the transition

         15  became easier because I had the support of my

         16  professors and especially of my mentor, whose

         17  favorite words were I had to know what I know so I

         18  can know what I don't know.

         19                 I had the opportunity during my

         20  years, two years, to observe master teachers to work

         21  as a tutor and were able to facilitate learning in a

         22  whole class situation under observation. I believe,

         23  without this program, teacher training in the CUNY

         24  system, I would have never been able to be as

         25  successful with my students as I am today.
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          2                 And also to just add, the success is

          3  so much that in the school that I am at PS 91, there

          4  are also teachers from Medgar Evers College who

          5  would have liked to be here today to get the

          6  opportunity to speak about the college because we

          7  are so proud of Medgar Evers.

          8                 I was also, another teacher and

          9  myself, I am a special ed teacher, and another

         10  teacher, she is a general ed teacher from Medgar

         11  Evers College, and we were recently asked to write

         12  an article about how we motivate our students to

         13  learn, and so I believe without this, the CUNY

         14  program, the training that we had would have never

         15  have been as successful as we are today.

         16                 Thank you for inviting me to testify.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you so

         18  much for your testimony, and good luck in your

         19  teaching career.

         20                 MS. WRIGHT: Thank you.

         21                 MS. WILLIAMS-LYLE: Good afternoon,

         22  Chairperson Marshall, Councilwoman Annette Robinson,

         23  I am Veronica Williams-Lyle and I am also a student

         24  at Medgar Evers College. The difference between us

         25  is to know they are earning money and I am still in
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          2  classes, but I am on the final lap.

          3                 I have also completed by two exams

          4  that the City requires and was successful in both,

          5  and I owe that in a great part to the nurturing

          6  environment of the college.

          7                 I just want to address two points.

          8  First, the point of mathematics, and the special

          9  treatment that those teachers will be getting, and I

         10  just want to interject there that mathematics, as we

         11  are doing in one of four methods classes and I saw

         12  my professor walking in just now, we have identified

         13  a possible reason for the lack of teachers in the

         14  area of mathematics and in an informal setting in

         15  class we came up with the idea that in the early

         16  years our girls are very good, very adept in

         17  mathematics and later on they tend to get not so

         18  interested in it, and maybe, we came up with the

         19  idea that maybe after an informal survey, that maybe

         20  this is due mainly in part so that age, that

         21  teenager year when they are attracted to the boys

         22  and the boys are well known for being good at this

         23  and so therefore they lose focus in order to satisfy

         24  the ego of the boys, maybe we ought to consider

         25  whether it is going to be a homogenous setting or a
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          2  heterogeneous one in the teaching of mathematics.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: It works both

          4  ways.

          5                 MS. WILLIAMS-LYLE: Okay.

          6                 And the next issue is my London trip.

          7  This was made possible by the efforts of one of our

          8  professors at Medgar Evers, Dr. Traeger. And it was

          9  a cross-culture experience for me and that gave me,

         10  that armed me with better tools to go out into the

         11  classroom, because in England, as we know England is

         12  the trailblazer for the integrated studies, the

         13  direction that we are taking now in the USA. And

         14  that really prepared me for teaching in the United

         15  States, as you have heard from my accent, I am from

         16  the Caribbean and that culture, the culture in

         17  England and the England study and the USA culture, I

         18  think I am better able to function in the New York

         19  City schools. And this is a program, an enriching

         20  program that Medgar Evers has really fostered for

         21  the past few years and I hope that other students

         22  behind me will be given the opportunity to really

         23  experience this from the education Department,

         24  because that is an experience that one cannot really

         25  earn other than being in that particular setting.
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          2  And I am really satisfied with my training as a

          3  teacher at Medgar Evers, and I am pretty sure that

          4  my colleagues were there, as we were told in the

          5  London schools we were really exemplary students and

          6  I am pretty sure that my colleagues feel the same

          7  way and we are about to make changes in the New York

          8  City schools, and we are confident that we will get

          9  there.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Professor Simmons, is there a

         14  presence of mentors in all of our schools of

         15  education throughout the system, do you know?

         16                 DR. SIMMONS: Not in all of the

         17  schools, and we are working very hard to get more

         18  mentors in Medgar Evers. In our learning communities

         19  we have practitioners in the field that are now

         20  meeting with our students so they have a fuller

         21  range of resources to work with.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay. Well,

         23  thank you very much for bringing the students with

         24  you, and thank you for your testimony.

         25                 DR. SIMMONS: Thank you for having us.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

          3                 We are going to actually create a

          4  panel for our last three speakers. That is Alberto

          5  Bursztyn, Deborah Gibbs and ann Hansen.

          6                 Alberto is from Brooklyn College,

          7  Deborah is from York College and Ann is from Lehman

          8  College.

          9                 Alberto.

         10                 PROFESSOR BURSZTYN: Yes, good

         11  afternoon. It is a pleasure to be here and have the

         12  opportunity to speak in behalf of Brooklyn College

         13  School of Education. Good afternoon, Madam Chair and

         14  members of the City Council Higher Education

         15  Committee.

         16                 It is really a good opportunity now

         17  to refer to Brooklyn College and the involvement

         18  that the School of Education physically has with the

         19  public schools.

         20                 First I wish to emphasize that

         21  Brooklyn College has had a long tradition of

         22  involvement in the public schools and in fact

         23  Brooklyn College was formed by combining the Hunter

         24  College plan branch of Brooklyn and City College, so

         25  in 1930 it began its involvement in higher education
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          2  as a new institution with a mission to address

          3  educational people of Brooklyn and specifically

          4  addressing teacher education.

          5                 This legacy is continued and has been

          6  deepened with the dynamic leadership of Dean Deborah

          7  Shanley. We are working closely with the schools in

          8  preparing pre-service teachers and we are in the

          9  process of redefining our curriculum in order to

         10  improve preparation of all of our teachers at the

         11  pre-service, as well as in-service levels.

         12                 I would like to emphasize the

         13  Brooklyn College Teacher Education Program is unique

         14  in its emphasis on the liberal arts and sciences. We

         15  have intense requirements for our students to take

         16  courses that are paired with liberal arts faculty so

         17  that our students from the department that they

         18  identify themselves as interested in education are

         19  required to take courses that emphasize depth in

         20  understanding all of the liberal arts sciences as

         21  well as the humanities.

         22                 We also emphasize the need for

         23  teachers to be partitioners and apply the art of

         24  teaching in the classroom, so from early on our

         25  students are required to attend schools and to be
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          2  involved in practica (sic) and gradually they assume

          3  a responsibility in student teaching, which is

          4  supervisor full-time faculty and is done in

          5  conjunction with outstanding collaborating features.

          6                 Brooklyn College also has two campus

          7  schools, the Bridges to Brooklyn and Brooklyn

          8  College Academy, which is a great five to 12 school.

          9  And Midwood High School at the Brooklyn College,

         10  which is known nationally for its achievement in

         11  math and science.

         12                 We work closely with practically all

         13  of the districts because of our involvement in

         14  preparing teachers from pre-K to 12, and now we are

         15  addressing the new requirements from the state to

         16  begin training for teachers from birth on.

         17                 We work closely with all districts in

         18  Brooklyn, and I would like to emphasize that our

         19  programs do not only prepare teachers, they also

         20  involve much preparation of counselors, school

         21  psychologists and administrators.

         22                 Some of the programs that I would

         23  like to focus some attention on have been already

         24  addressed, and for the sake of brevity I will not

         25  repeat the content of these courses, but for
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          2  instance, the TOP program that Dean Hotzler

          3  mentioned is something that we are very involved

          4  with and we are preparing teachers specifically in

          5  math at Brooklyn and we have had the first cohort

          6  enrolled and it is so far a very successful program.

          7                 We are also involved with a program

          8  called Pathways to teaching, which involves helping

          9  local districts bringing teachers that have already

         10  been hired, that are properly certified to a point

         11  where they can achieve certification so we have been

         12  talking with teachers who are placed in districts

         13  17, 19, 23 and 14.

         14                 We work closely with the Board of

         15  Education preparing bilingual special education

         16  teachers and we have a scholarship program which the

         17  Board supports for preparation of this area, as well

         18  as for people who have credentials in psychology and

         19  counseling and want to get the certification for

         20  working as bilingual clinicians.

         21                 We also are involved with the Board

         22  of Education in a project called the Middle Schools

         23  Initiative, and we work with District 16 and 17 in

         24  the reinstruction of the middle schools.

         25                 We have, as an outgrowth of that
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          2  project we have begun a program of addressing

          3  leadership in those areas in middle schools and we

          4  are going to be hosting beginning next week, a

          5  series of five conferences at Brooklyn College,

          6  bringing the leadership of local middle schools to

          7  address their own needs for development, a large

          8  proportion of those administrators are probationary,

          9  newly appointed and they are in dire need of

         10  assistance and support.

         11                 We also work together with District

         12  21 and we are preparing a leadership institute

         13  together with them that is to address leadership

         14  issues within that district, as well as all the

         15  districts in Brooklyn.

         16                 We work closely with the Lincoln

         17  Center Institute to bring the humanities and the

         18  arts to our teacher education program and Brooklyn

         19  College has been the pioneer in bringing this area

         20  of training to pre-service education, so we had

         21  partnered with Lincoln Center about five years ago

         22  and we continue to do so at present to infuse the

         23  teaching of the arts and the humanities at the

         24  pre-service level, an area that has been neglected

         25  in New York City for over the past 20 years, as we
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          2  all know it.

          3                 We also have a branch of our school

          4  called the Center for Educational Change, which has

          5  been very effective in bringing programs to the

          6  schools to address specific areas of professional

          7  development, such as literacy or math.

          8                 Right now we are running a program

          9  called What's Hot In Mathematics, which brings in a

         10  large number of mathematics teachers at the high

         11  school level to learn how to teach through the new

         12  standards.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That is, in

         14  other words, in-service training, then, for teachers

         15  who already --

         16                 PROFESSOR BURSZTYN: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That's great.

         18                 PROFESSOR BURSZTYN: We also have a

         19  project, with the help of the Borough President of

         20  Brooklyn, Borough President Golden, we have been

         21  able to support a project called The Day of the

         22  Poet, and we bring students from over 100 high

         23  schools to read and share their poetry once a year.

         24                 We also work together with District

         25  75 addressing issues of transition for students with
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          2  severe disabilities, and Brooklyn College itself has

          3  become a site for preparing students for transition.

          4                 And one more project that I would

          5  like to mention, it has been addressed before, which

          6  is the collaborative with Queens College for

          7  dissemination of information regarding bilingual

          8  assessment, which is a statewide project and has

          9  significant impact on the uses of assessment

         10  instruments for the assessment of bilingual

         11  students.

         12                 I mention these projects, and it is

         13  not an exhaustive list, because we believe there are

         14  certain very clear needs in the City and we are

         15  trying to address them. First and foremost, the need

         16  for qualified teachers has been mentioned repeatedly

         17  here. The numbers of the teachers who are leaving

         18  the system is frightening.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes.

         20                 PROFESSOR BURSZTYN: We also see that

         21  the number of qualified administrators leaving the

         22  system is frightening.

         23                 Right now, this is one of the areas

         24  that we are very concerned with and we are trying to

         25  assist the local schools in meeting those needs.
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          2                 We also understand that many of the

          3  teachers who are in the school are fully prepared

          4  for the job, the districts are desperate for finding

          5  people to fill the positions, because very many of

          6  them do not meet the state criterion for

          7  specification. So, we are involved with that project

          8  in many districts to help teachers reach

          9  certification.

         10                 We also recognize that many of the

         11  teachers who are properly certified have been

         12  working in the schools for many years, are very

         13  unfamiliar with learning standards. And so there is

         14  a substantial need for retraining, bettering

         15  teachers, and we are trying to address that through

         16  our external programs.

         17                 As I mentioned before, the leaders

         18  have been neglected. I think that we need to pay

         19  attention to our leadership, and there is

         20  substantial demoralization of the assistant

         21  principals, particularly in the high schools,

         22  because of their contracts negotiations.

         23                 We have, there is a plight of

         24  qualified administrators for the City, it is a very

         25  worrisome issue because the number of people
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          2  applying for these positions is diminishing

          3  dramatically.

          4                 And finally, I would like to say

          5  there are two other issues that concern us. One is

          6  the question of mentoring, how to provide mentoring

          7  for new teachers. I think it is critical that we

          8  address this because it is hard enough to find

          9  people teaching in the schools, we have to keep them

         10  there and keep them satisfied in their jobs and that

         11  is something that we are not paying enough attention

         12  to.

         13                 And the last item relates to

         14  technology. I think that we at CUNY are doing the

         15  best we can to prepare our teachers to work with the

         16  new technology coming into the classroom with

         17  promises to revolutionize teaching and learning.

         18  However, funding for the equipment, for the space,

         19  for the time to prepare teachers for this area has

         20  been neglected. I think at this point the Council

         21  needs to begin paying attention to how to provide

         22  funding for the colleges to support instruction

         23  using technology. This is a new area and we are

         24  seriously underfunded.

         25                 My last comment has to do with the
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          2  number of faculty that we have. It has been

          3  mentioned that all of CUNY schools of education have

          4  suffered dramatically due to the retrenchment

          5  efforts and other fiscal considerations.

          6                 We are right now, just to give you a

          7  personal example, when I came to Brooklyn College in

          8  1992 there were 58 full-time faculty members, now we

          9  are 32. And the number of students we serve has

         10  increased.

         11                 Thank you. I am really pleased to

         12  have the opportunity to bring these activities to

         13  your attention, and if you would like to obtain

         14  additional information, I would be happy to provide

         15  it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, Professor

         17  Brusztyn, we really appreciate your comments, and I

         18  think one of the things that you talked about is

         19  bringing students to the college, that can have a

         20  profound effect. I remember when I was a little kid

         21  in the Bronx, and I had to go to Fordham University

         22  once a year, it was actually for maypole dance, but

         23  it always stayed in my mind. And I think bringing

         24  youngsters to the college has a very, very important

         25  impact on them.
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          2                 PROFESSOR BRUSZTYN: We try to do

          3  that. In fact, we have a musical performance event

          4  where we bring students from the local junior high

          5  school to the high schools to perform at the

          6  performance-based Brooklyn, and it is a very popular

          7  activity.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And it is

          9  excellent for the students.

         10                 Now, we are going to ask also now

         11  Professor Hansen, and then we are going to hear from

         12  Deborah Gibbs.

         13                 PROFESSOR HANSEN: Thank you. My name

         14  is Ann Hansen. I represent the Division of Education

         15  at Lehman College. We have spoken, many of the

         16  colleges have spoken this morning about

         17  collaboratives and that is the model of teacher

         18  education that Lehman is involved in, and, in fact,

         19  I am proud to say we are in the midst of 36

         20  collaboratives with 120 city schools, but rather

         21  than repeat what has been said by some of the other

         22  colleges, let me just talk about our newest example

         23  of collaboration.

         24                 Because of Lehman's concern for

         25  preparing well-qualified pre-service teachers and
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          2  strengthening the knowledge and skills of in-service

          3  teachers, it is in the process of developing a

          4  professional development network, which is a close

          5  relationship between the college and several schools

          6  in the Bronx.

          7                 Last spring, Lehman's Department of

          8  early childhood and elementary education and public

          9  schools 23 and 159 joined in a partnership which is

         10  designed to strengthen educational programs at both

         11  the college and the school.

         12                 Administrators and teachers from PS

         13  23 and 159 have been serving as adjunct faculty in

         14  the undergraduate and graduate teacher education

         15  programs at Lehman and currently four methods,

         16  pre-service methods classes are being held at PS 23

         17  and 159 to provide quality teaching experiences for

         18  Lehman students.

         19                 This past June, a professional

         20  development task force composed of Lehman faculty,

         21  members of the Bronx Education Alliance, the Teacher

         22  Opportunity Corps, and the Literacy Institute met to

         23  identify core characteristics of a professional

         24  development school network. Lehman believes that a

         25  Lehman PDS partnership can best prepare teachers for

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            138

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  urban schools, can help schools meet the needs for

          3  improving the education of children, and can offer

          4  professional development opportunities for Bronx

          5  teachers.

          6                 Lehman has made a commitment to

          7  expand this professional development school network,

          8  and as an example of this I was hired just two weeks

          9  ago as the College School Professional Development

         10  Coordinator to assist with the setting up of this

         11  expanded network.

         12                 Lehman is presently seeking national

         13  accreditation for its teacher education program. It

         14  expects to continue its grant funded collaboratives

         15  with the City schools, and in addition build a

         16  professional development school network in an

         17  ongoing effort to provide high quality teacher

         18  preparation in the Bronx, and I thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Each of the

         20  colleges represented at the table are very special

         21  to me.

         22                 My daughter did attend Brooklyn

         23  College for awhile and then she switched to Queens

         24  College.

         25                 Lehman College is where my son took
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          2  his preengineering course, and our last speaker

          3  represents York College, which is very, very close

          4  and dear to me because it is in Queens and I have

          5  spent quite a few days there. So, we look forward to

          6  your testimony too.

          7                 MS. GIBBS: Good morning, Madam Chair.

          8  I just want to say my daughter is currently in the

          9  master's education program at Brooklyn College.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We are all

         11  entrenched with the City University.

         12                 MS. GIBBS: We have a full

         13  representation of our colleges.

         14                 Good morning, Madam Chair and members

         15  of the Committee. Thank you for allowing me to speak

         16  before you, and I also would like to thank Professor

         17  Duvall for asking me to come and represent York

         18  College.

         19                 I have heard many statements today

         20  and I have nothing prepared for you, but I will

         21  speak to you from my heart because education has

         22  been, my decision to become a teacher has been since

         23  I was a little girl. Unfortunately I had another

         24  career for 13 years that took me away from my dream

         25  an my love, but I made a decision eight years ago to
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          2  follow that dream and become an educator.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Great.

          4                 MS. GIBBS: And York College is an

          5  urban inner-City school, and I think we are terribly

          6  misrepresented. We are a very small school, but we

          7  have produced some of the most wonderful educators

          8  that I have been pleased and fortunate to meet.

          9                 I have heard a lot of numbers moving

         10  around, and because I don't have time to read -- I

         11  am a full-time paraprofessional with the Board of

         12  Education with District 75, I am a full-time mother,

         13  I have a 15 year old and a 21 year old, so I really

         14  don't have time to read a lot of figures and

         15  percentages, but I will say that every one of my

         16  colleagues that have graduated from York College

         17  have passed the state certification tests. So, I

         18  don't understand where those figures come from that

         19  we are not producing qualified educators.

         20                 I have the pleasure of working at

         21  Louis Armstrong Middle School, and the principal was

         22  here, we are a paraprofessional in the inclusion

         23  program, but my education at York College has been

         24  one beyond my wildest dreams.

         25                 I have had educators to instruct me
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          2  in real life situations within the classroom and

          3  outside of the classroom. I have a professor,

          4  Professor Roy, who is a mathematician, who has given

          5  me the love of mathematics that I was totally

          6  terrified of from a little girl. She made

          7  mathematics alive for me, and has even encouraged me

          8  to pursue teaching mathematics, I still shudder, but

          9  with that kind of encouragement, they have nurtured

         10  me enough to take risks that I have never ever been

         11  able to take or felt secure enough to take before.

         12                 I have professor, Dr. Cravitz, every

         13  one of my professors, I can remember what they have

         14  instilled and taught me to be as a human being as

         15  well as an educator. Dr. Cravitz told me that no

         16  matter whatever goes on in the hallways, close my

         17  doors and teach.

         18                 I have had the pleasure of working

         19  with Dr. Wynne Schilling in the Project Read, it

         20  totally opened up a whole new world for me in

         21  literacy and reading for children.

         22                 Again, Dr. Roy. Dr. Roy has been such

         23  a -- do we have one-on-one mentorship? Dr. Roy has

         24  encouraged me every step of the way.

         25                 Dr. Roy encouraged me to come back to
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          2  school, over the telephone after my husband passed.

          3  She told me I will not allow you to lay down,

          4  because if you lay down you won't get up.

          5                 She has -- the teachers and the

          6  professors at York College are unbelievable. I am a

          7  mature student, and they have made classes

          8  affordable and available for me to take so that I

          9  could still be an active member and participate with

         10  my children. I am a single parent now, and they are

         11  very understanding of the hardship and the

         12  situations that single parents must attend to and

         13  plus achieve in their educational goals.

         14                 I have been on the Dean's List for

         15  two years. I really can't put into words the

         16  experiences that I have had. York College is one of

         17  the most wonderful places in the world for me, and

         18  all of these statistics and figures and all of that,

         19  it is not important to me. What is important to me

         20  is to be an educator, it is what I have always

         21  wanted to do, and they have afforded me that

         22  opportunity. I am on my last leg and we have many

         23  programs, we have workshops preparing teachers for

         24  the upcoming certification test. Every Tuesday with

         25  our student teacher program, the workshop, we meet
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          2  with people from the Board of Education to help the

          3  transitional process from, especially being a

          4  paraprofessional, the transition process from that

          5  particular experience to becoming as certified

          6  teacher.

          7                 We have Dr. Reuter who sits down and

          8  gives us many of the slides of the art department

          9  and the questions that it could possibly ask on this

         10  test. On Saturdays there are courses designed to

         11  help students that are preparing to take a test.

         12                 We have had great successes at York

         13  College and I am really proud to represent the

         14  college.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, I want to

         17  thank you very much for your testimony, and nothing

         18  could be more fitting than to have a student than to

         19  wind up our hearing today.

         20                 You are involved -- I am sorry that I

         21  missed Louis Armstrong School's presentation, but I

         22  invited the principal Mrs. Ophals because I am sort

         23  of the mother of that school and I want you to know,

         24  we talk about the interaction with professors, I was

         25  going to Queens College when we were establishing
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          2  that school and I invited John Lindstrom to come and

          3  sit with us in helping us to plan that school, and

          4  Queens College is still there today. And that is an

          5  example of what we can do to give teachers hands on

          6  experience. And it is obvious it has been

          7  replicated, that concept, with many of our colleges.

          8                 And as far as adult students are

          9  concerned, I was a returning adult student too,

         10  because it was always my dream to become a teacher,

         11  and I did receive my education after 30. It has been

         12  a long time since I taught.

         13                 But those are our most promising

         14  students. They have the greatest potential for

         15  success because they are serious, just like you are,

         16  and they know what they want to do. So you represent

         17  a large body of our students, of our student

         18  population in the City University.

         19                 Congratulations.

         20                 MS. GIBBS: Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And have great

         22  success in your educational experience.

         23                 I want to thank the other two

         24  professors for coming today and sharing with us, and

         25  I want to thank everyone for sticking with us
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          2  throughout this, and everyone who came to testify.

          3                 This hearing is now concluded. Thank

          4  you. We will, of course, review all of the

          5  information that has been given to us, and it will

          6  be very helpful in our process of trying to really

          7  support our City University.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 1:10 p.m.)
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